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SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA
WEDNEénay, DECEMBER 8, 1999, 9:00 A.M.
---000---

HEARING OFFICER BAGGET: See if it sounds like we are
getting close here. I think we left off with Inland Empire.
Ready for the case in chief.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Mﬂrning.

H.O. BAGGET: Morning.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Couple of brief opening remarks.
My name is Jean Cihigoyenetche. |

Honorable Board, I represent the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency and in another faShiqn many of the agencies
incorporated within our geographicai jurisdiction. Inland
Empire Utilities Agency is a municipal water district. It
encompasses a geographical territory of approximate;y 235
square miles and services a population preseﬁtly épproaching
700,000 people.

As can be discerned thus far, I am sure by the Board,
the concerns which our upper region brings us he;e to
Sacramento is that 1iftiﬁ§ the declaration of fuliy
appropriation would somehow jeopardize the terms aﬁd
conditions of the 1969 judgment as it provides for the
delivery of 42,000 acre-feet per year in the aggregate at
Prado Dam. We are concerned that this hearing'and ultimate

ruling may be but the first step in modifying and increasing
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our responsibilities.

We are also concernéd that Orange County and other
third parties may be seeking to 1§y claim to ocur wastewater
and storm flows which would adversely affect the Optimum
Base Management Plan. For phose reasong, we are going to
put on a case in chief todéy that shows no change in
circumstances have occurredf as suggested by Orange County
Water District, which would warrant a lifting of the current
declaration of full appropriation.

The evidence we believe will show, first of all, these
increased flows, which are relied upon by Orange County
Water District in their presentation, were fully considered
and accounted for as early as 1960 when the original
judgment was enacted and put into place. The evidence will
show that through the terms and conditions of the judgment
itseli that credits were provided for and the accounting for
credits were provided for.

Mr. Mills testified to a credit of over 1,000,000
acre-feet pregently attributable to the northern region.
Query, why would credits be taken into account in the
judgment if excess flows were not contemplated at that
time? Hence, no change in circumstances presently. |

Secondly, the evidence will show that although perhaps
historically we have not been as diligent in capturing these

storm flows and utilizing our reclaimed water as we would
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have 1iked,“we are implementing complete plans. Séme of
these plans, including Ely Basin, and environmental reports
are underway as we speak. So they are not just plans on the
drawing board, but they are being presently impléﬁénted.

The evidence will show that ultimately all of“the axtra
flows that are being referred to in this proceeding will be
utilizing, enacting and implementing the Optimum Basin
Management Program.

Traci Stewart will testify on behalf of the agency that
she is in the process of preparing the Optimum Basin
Management Plan and that she is under court order to do so.
She has specific dates upqn which that plan needs to be
completed. BAnd that without utilization of extra flows that
we have been discussing here for the last day and a half,
these plans cannot be met. They simply will not be
accomplished. We are 100 percent reliant upon these flows.

Finally, in addition to the matters that we have
briefly discussed as to why we believe there are no changed
circumstances, we would alsc invoke by way of the 1969
judgment Section 8 of that judgment, which talks about
jurisdiction and who has jurisdiction over changes,
including changed circumstances and changes in the rights
between the parties to that judgment.

We would submit in terms of the legal argument that the

judgment supports exclusive jurisdiction in a Superior
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Court, which we believe, pursuant to Section 8, has
preempted these issues presently before this Board.
So with that in mind, I would like to proceed with my

case in chief at this time. Ask Ms. Traci Stewart and Mr.

.Doug Drury to step forward.

-=--o00---
DIRECT EXAMINATION OF INLAND EMPIRE.UTILITIES AGENCY
BY MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Start with Ms. Stewart.

If you could please state your full name.

MS. STEWART: My name is Traci Stewart.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Ms. Stewart, what ig your current
occupation?

MS. STEWART: I am the Chief of Watermaster Services
for the Chino Basin Watermasfer.

MR, CIHIGOYENETCHE: Now, prior to the hearing we had
submitted written testimony prepared by you and have
identified it as Exhibit B.

Is that a true and correct copy of your written

. testimony?

MS. STEWART: Yes, it is.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHEE: As Chief of Watermaster Services,
you are Presently in the process of preparing an Optimum
Basin Management Plan; is that correct?

MS. STEWART: Yes.
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MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Can you ekplain to us what in
effect that is? |

MS. STEWART: Under our adjudication, which as entered
in 1978, the Watermaster has the responsibility ;@Idevelop
an Optimum Basin Management Program for the Chino Basin.
And essentially what that program is is it is to encompass
all of the flows and sources of water that will enable us to
fully utilize the groundwater basin that is the Chino
Basin.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: You are under court order to
accomplish this task; is that correct?

MS. STEWART: Yes, it is. We had an order entered on
February 19, 1998, that required us to complete it. It
established a time line, and that time line is due to be
completed by June of 2000.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: And how much money has been speﬁt
thus far in preparing and implementing the Optimum Basin
Management Plan?

MS. STEWART: We spent at least £3,000,000 in
development and early impiementation items for‘the Optimum
Basin Management Program.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Does the OBMT, and I will use the
abbreviation that we banty—about, does the OBMT take into
consideration the use of conservation and storm flows and

recycled water?
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MS. STEWART: In our Optimum Basin Management Program
we have nine program elements that we intend té pursue and
develop. And among those program elements, two of them --
one of them is recharging, increasing our ability to
reéharge both storm flows and recycled water; and that would
be in furtherance of ﬁrpg:am elements three and five which
are to enhance -- maintain and enhance the yield of our
basin by improving our water supply and addressing some of
the impaired areas that we have in our basin, the challenges
that we have there.

| MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Now, under the judgment with which
you are intimately familiar since you administer the Chino
Basin Judgment; is that correct?

MS. STEWART: Uh-huh.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: That is a judgment separate and
apart from the Orange County Judgment that you heard
discussed here previously?

MS. STEWART: That's correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Under the Chino Basin Judgment it
is contemplated that additional water would be available for
conservation and urbanizatiog; is that correct?

MS. STEWART: Under our judgment we have established
three pools, and those poocls, they are based on categories
of use. 2And one category o£ use is we call the

appropriative pool. And those users serve"municipal and
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industrial uses in our basin. 2nd under our judgment the
appropriative pool, and‘this is because of some things éhat
occurred during the adjudication, some legal things. But
that pool is entitled to any increases and must suffer any
decreases that we take in the safe yield of the bésin.

So, what was contemplated is that during development of
our Optimum Basin Management Program, we would be enhancing
our yield by utilizing the storm flows, improving our
ability to comnserve those storm flows and the increased
runoff from urbanization as well as increasing our ability
to use recycled water. And what we are anticipating is that
we will improve our ability to do that to the extemt of 30-
to 40,000 acre-feet of increased storm flows and runoff and
an additional, at a minimum, 30 to 40 acre-feet of recycled
water.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Do you believe that lifting the
declarétion of fully appropriated stream would have an
adverse ‘effect on your plans?

MS. STEWART: This is why we are up here. We have
concern that it could do that because of our requirement and
court order mandate to use those flows and to improve our
ability to manage our basin.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: I have no further questions of
this witness.

Mr. Drury, could you"state your full name.
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DR. DRURY: Hy name is Doug Drury.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCEHE: Wﬁét ig your present occupation,
six? |

DR. DRURY: I am Executive Manager of operations and
Engineering for Inland Empire Utilities Agency.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: How long have you held that
position?

DR. DRURY: For about four vears.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Earlier I had submitted to the
Board the resume of Mr. Drury attached with my notice of
intent to produce witnesses. That was erroneously omitted
from my Exhibit list. If I could have that marked as
Exhibit H with Board's permission, the resume of Doug Drury?

MR. FRINK: That is fine.

H.O. BAGGET: That is fine.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Thank you.

And you had submitted to us earlier, Dr. Drury, a true
and correct copy of your resume; is that correct?

DR. DRt_ﬂiY: That's correct. |

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Previously we have submitted your
declaration, an amended Declaration, which has been
generally identified as Exhibit A, Is that a true and
cqrrect copy of your written testimony, sir?

DR. DRURY: With the exception of the spellings of

percolation it is.
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MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Typographical errors omitted, that

is'your testimony?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. CIBEIGOYENETCHE: You had to get that in, didn't
you?

Now, you too, Dr. Drury, have involvement with the
Optimum Basin Management Program; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct. I have been an active

participant in the process.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: What is the nature of your role in

that process?

DR. DRURY: Basically, just one of the participants.
The process includes all the different water users and
wastewater treatment pecple in the Chino Basin area, and
everybody's represented. And I have been one of the
representation people active in the process.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: You are familiar with the nature
of the plans that are beiﬁg implemented at the présent time
to increase the use of wastewater?

DR. DRURY: Yes. We've put together a plan for
recycling and reuse of our wastewater in the area, and we
have made several presentations, both to OMP and to our
various agencies in the area.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: We have attached, also, a

Presentation and identified it as Exhibit D in our notice.
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Is that a true and correct copy of the pPresentation you are
referring to, sgir?

DR. DRURY: Yes, sir.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: What basically is that
presentation about?

DR. DRURY: Basically it is a presentation of our plan
to recycle wastewater. It goes through all the possible
scenarios we have in terms of development of recharge
sites. It talks about our use of recycled.water, both
present and in the future, and tries to qﬁantify those
waters.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: How much water, wastewater, is
being discharged by Inland Empire at this point in time?

DR. DRURY: We discharge somewhere between 50- and
60,000,000 gallons per dayf

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Can you tell the Board a little
bit about what Iniand Empire's plans for reclaimed water are
as time progresses?

DR. DRURY: Basically, we plan on increasing the amount
of recycle and reuse in the area. That is a very simplified
version. But we want to recharge. We want to blend with
stéfm water and blend with State Project Water our effluent
into the groundwater basin. In addition we want to dual
pipe new development areas and use that for landscape |

irrigation.
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MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: You have a couple overheads you
have pulled directly from Exhibit D; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Would you go ahead and put those
on the board.

This is part of Exh{bit D; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Can you explain to us what this
depicts?

'DR. DRURY: What it shows is, first off, the bdﬁndaries
of our district. And then we have located here all of the
regharge basins in the area in green. We have located our
wastewater treatment plants in brown. And then we have
located our backbone of:dur water reclamation system in the
purple and the solid liges being the existing‘pipiﬁg aystem.
The dotted lines being ﬁhat we planmed for the néar future.

As you can see, we have a lot of basins in the area.
Cur ultimate goal is to supply wastewater to every one of
these recharge basins in the area to blend with the storm
water and to blend with State Project Water. The dark blue
lines are the State Project Water lines that already extend
into some of the basgins. We héve to do some work there, as
well. You see we have future extensions of the State
Project Water line. And, basically, our objective is to in

every basin in the area put State Project Water in the basin
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as well as reclaimed water in the basin.

Should notice that we have between our distance between
RP4 and Carbon Canyon we have over 15 miles of pipeline. We
have ability to reclaim on that line. We are going to
interconnect so eventually we will have a backbone through
our district of reclaimed wat;r. And you see tﬁis area down
heie, this is important because we just put that system on
line. We've dual piped parts of the city of Chino and Chino
Hills. This just went on line this last year. And Bill
Mills is correct. It is very expensive to do.

We have committed to reclamation. We installed this
system in the last year, about 2000 acre-feet per year. We
have just put on line Ely Basin. We have been discharging
there this year in September. We are putting about 500
acre-feet per year into this basgin. We are presently doing
an EIR, preparing an EIR for percolation of sewage effluent
in Ely and Etiwanda Basins. It is going to take very little
effort for us to go through or percolaﬁe into these other
two basins, one right adjaceﬁt to our plant and one right
beldw our plants. That ig basically our plan for the
future.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Are these plans contingent upon
déiivering 17,000 acre-feet of water to Orange County Water
District at Prado Dam?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.
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MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: If the declaration of fully
appropriated status is lifted, do you believe that would
have an adverse impact on these plans that.you axé
implementing?

DR. DRURY: There is no question that if wé‘ha& to
discharge that that would alter our plans, yes. .

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: If you had to discharge more than
that amount?

| DR. DRURY: Right.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE; EHow much of the present wastewater
do you believe you will be able to use in terms of recharge
in the future?

DR. DRURY: Our goal is to use all but the 17,000
acre-feet per vear.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: That is all but your obligation
under the Orange County Judgment?

DR. DRURY: Right.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: ‘Salt management is also a program
contemplated by IEUA; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: What is the nature of that
program?

DR. DRURY: Basically there is three desalters planned
for the area. One of which is under comstruction which will

be completed this spring. And basically it is to remove the
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sait from the water and make the waters in the bottom end of
our basgin useful ‘and use that ag a water supply source for
the new dévelopment.

MR. CIEIGOYENETCHE: EHas the salt management program
béen implemented in any way?

DR. DRURY: We are beginning to implement it. Like we
said, the £irst desalter will be on line this spring. Thefé
is other aspects of the program. We have established a
manure composting site so we can export the salts outside
the basin. We're actively involved in salt management in
our basin.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: You indicate that your planning
process is reliant on the terms and conditions of the 1969
O;ange County Judgment; ié fhat correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: I believe your writtem testimony
suggests that, if and when your plans are implemented, there
will be no extra water over and above what you are required
to deliver at Prado Dam; is that correct? |

DR. DRURY: That is an ambitious goal, but that is our
géal.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Do you have any idea in terms of
dollars and cents how much has been expended thus far in
implementing these long-term plans?

DR. DRURY: Geez. Between the time planning effort and
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what we have already got,éonstructed, we're looking in
excess of $15,000,000 to date with -- I am just -- the
salters are another 55(006, which is a three-party effort.
That is not 55,000. 2And you're going to build tiwo more
desalters, so you are looking at another hundred milliom.

There is comsiderable effort to date, at least, say,

 $70,000,0000.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Now vou have made reference to one
desalter. There is one under comstruction now; is that
correct?

DR. DRURY: That's cbrrect.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: When is it estimated that that

will come on line?

DR. DRURY: This spring.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: That is a cooperative agreement
between several agencies?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Who are the parties to that?

DR. DRURY: Western MunicipaI“Water District and Orange
County Water District working as a subcommittee of SAWPA.,

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Did you have any overheads that
you --

DR. DRURY: No. I did want to make an additional
comment. The Regional Board is very concerned about the

groundwater leaving our basin, and we have been working with
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them both in terms of nitrogen and TDS. And right now one
of their concerns is that the groundwater leaving our basin

will adversely impact Oraﬁge County downstream users. And

we are actively working on a plan now to try to control our

basin, basically control the spigot leaving our basin, we
hope that desalter will accomplish that. We have been
working actively with Orange County and Regional Board in
implementing these plans.
MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Anything else?
DBR. DRURY: No.
MR. CIHIGOYENETCEE: I have nothing further.
H.O. BAGGET: Cross-examination. San Bernardino.
«~~000---
CROSS-EXAMINATION OF INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
BY SAN BERNARDINQ VBLLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT &
WESTERN MUTUAL WATER DISTRICT
BY MR. O'BRIEN
MR. O'BRIEN: I thlnk my questions are probably for Dro
D?ury, but, Ms. Stewart, you are welcome to chime in if you
like.
| Dr. Drury, are you generally familiar with the prdposal
of my clients, Muni and Western to appropriate water at
Seven Oaks Dam?
DR. DRURY: From this hearing, just the last two days,

ves.
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MR. O'BRIEN: So you have a general understanding of
the proposal, but perhaps haven't studied the details?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: If the appropriation of water by my
clients were ultimately approved by. this Board with terms
and conditions that ensured that the interest of the agency,
particular the interest related to wastewater, reﬁ#e, that
vyou have outlined in your testimony, 1f those interests were
fully protected, would your agency have any objection in
principle to the idea of appropriating water at Seven Oaks
Dam?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Interpose an objection. Vague.

No foundation. I don't know Dr. Drury has that authority to
agree oﬁ betalf of our agency as to aﬁything.

MR. O'BRIEN: I am just asking for his understanding of
his agency's position with respect to our petitioq, which ig
the reason we are here. If he doesn't have authdrity, he
can say so.

H.O. BAGGET: You can answer.

DR. DRURY: I have no position on their action.

MR. O'BRIEN: Has your agency taken a position in
opposition to the petition to revise the fully appfdpriated
stream order that has been filed by Muni and Western?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: To your knowledge.

DR. DRURY: Not that I am aware of.
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MR. O'BRIEN: So they have taken no position on it?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: Thank vou.

H.O. BAGGET: Mr. McNevin.

MR, MCNEVIN: Thank you.

---00o0---
CROSS-EXAMINATION OF INLAND EMPTIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
BY ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BY MR. MCNEVIN

MR. MCNEVIN: Good morning., I am Chris McNevin,
agéin.

Dr. Drury, 1 received your amended testimony last
F:iday. Out of curiosity, why did you amend your
testimony?

DR. DRURY: There was some typographical errors as well
as rephrasing of some questions.

MR. MCNEVIN: 7You basically doubled the length of it?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: I am going to object. It callsg
for a legal conclusion.

MR. FRINK: Mr. McNevin, excuse me. I think I can
answer that. We received what was essentially an outline of
the testimony that Dr. Drury was going to submit, and I
spoke with the attorney for Inland Empire and advised him,
in‘accordance with the hearing notice and our regulations,

he was supposed to submit the testimony in writing in full.
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And he indicated he would Prepare -- he would work with Dr.
Drury, prepare the amended version and get that out as soon
as he could.

MR. MCNEVIN: Thank you very much.

Dr. Drury, we were surprised to hear that your
testimony is that these programs you described are going to
impact the flows at Prado, and that is what I would like to
talk to you about today.-

First of all, it is my understanding that you do agree
that the base flows at Prado have increased as a result of
increased wastewater generated upstream?

DR. DRURY: That is one of the factors, yves.

MR. MCNEVIN: And you testified in your written
testimony as amended that Inland Empire has been developing
Plans to reuse this wastewater since the 1969 stipulated
judgment; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: So for 30 years you have been develoéing
these plans; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: Yet no;withstanding these 30 yvears of
plans that you've been developing, the base flows:at Prado
are still increasing each Year for the past several yvears:;
isn't that correct?

DR. DRURY: Yes. - That is a conclusion you can come
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MR. MCNEVIN: Do you agree with that conclusion?

DR. DRURY: The différence is between planning and
implementing. We are now starting to implement.

MR. MCNEVIN: Yes. But my question is,
notwithstanding, your 30 years of plans, the base Flows have
nonetheless been increasing during that whole 30-year period?

DR. DRURY: fThat's corréct.

MR. MCNEVIN: Inland Empire is a member of the Santa
Ana River Watermaster?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: And the Watermaster publishes these
repbrts of base flows each year?

| DR. DRURY: Yes.

MR. MCNEVIN: B2And when you saw Bill Mills' chart
showing that on the average over the past 30 years of your
Plans the base flows have been increasing by approximately
3800 acre-feet per year, did you have any basis to disagree
with that?

DR. DRURY: No.

MR. MCNEVIN: Now, you said in your amended testimony,
and I will quote from Paragraph 5:

At the present time Inland Empire Utility
Agency hﬁé significantly -- (Reading.)

- And that is your word, significantly.
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-~ increased the use of reclaimed and
recycled water. (Reading.)

Do you see that in Paragraph 5, Line 137

DR. DRURY: Yes.

MR. MCNEVIN: Your current uge of recgycled water is
approximately 4100 acre-feet per year?

DR. DRURY: That's cérrect.

MR. MCNEVIN: So that 4100 acre-feet is the figure you
are referring to as your present significant inérease?'

DR. DRURY: No. The 4100 is an absolute value, mot
increase.

MR. MCNEVIN: You said -- what was the increase?

DR. DRURY: In thezlast we've approximately doubled
that with two projects we put on line. So, roughiy 2,000
prior to last year, 4,000 this year.

MR. MCNEVIN: So then the significant increase you
refer to in Paragraph 5 is 2,000 acre-feet?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: And the example you gave of actual use of
reclaimed wastewater is this dual pipeline to Chinq and
Chino Hills?

DR. DRURY: That is one example.

MR. MCNEVIN: The other --

DR. DRURY: Ely Basin.

MR. MCNEVIN: The first example is the dual pipeline?
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DR. DRURY: Right.

MR. MCNEVIN: You said in Paragraph 10 that this dual
Pipeline project has been in operation for approximately two
years already.

Do you gee that, Paragraph 10°?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: Paragraph 10, Line 26.

DR. DRURY: We're in“oﬁr second year.

MR. MCNEVIN: Not withstanding the operation of that
dnal pipeline program, as yqu testified, for two year§
approximately the Watermaster of which Inland Empire is a
member, still reports significaﬁt increases in base flows at
Prado over the past two years, doesn't it?

DR. DRURY: Yes.

MR. MCNEVIN: Now, you mentioned also the Ely Basin
recharge facility, and you described that as a more
important project, correct? Paragraph 10, Line 23.

DR. DRURY: Okay.

- MR. MCNEVIN: Is that your term for that project?

DR. DRURY: I said more importantly.

MR. MCNEVIN: That project only involves 500 acre-feet
Per year, correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: Has that more important project caused

aﬁy detectable decrease in base flows at Prado?
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DR. DRURY: The more important project is a
demonstration of the prdcéss and the potential for future
recharge. That is why it_is more important.

Now as to your quéstion; more important project, it has
not -- it is about 500 acre-feet per year; and that has nét
significantly impacted flow at Prado yet, no.

MR. MCNEVIN: Long-term --

DR. DRURY: Realize that was started up in September of
this year.

MR. MCNEVIN: Right.

500 acre-feet, does that cause any detectable or even
measurable decrease at Prado?

DR. DRURY: Probably not.

MR. MCNEVIN: Long-term, you testified at Paragraph 6,
that you hope to reuse 71,700 acre-feet wastewater by 20207

DR. DRURY: Yes.

MR. MCNEVIN: You don't have the contracts ané the
infrastructure to use that wastewater today, do you?

DR. DRURY: They are being worked out as part of OBMP,
so we do not have it today. The concept is in place and we
are working on it.

MR. MCNEVIN: You have a concept, but you dog't have an
infrastructure?

DR. DRURY: We have some of the infrastructufe, not all

of the infrastructure.
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- MR. MCNEVIN: And the.infrastructure you've got is for
500 acre-feet Ely Basin .

DR. DRURY: No, that is incorrect. We have pipelineé
in place. We have pipelines going by recharge basins. We
just have not run the 200 feet of pipeline from the main
pipeline to the basins. We are presently doing EIRs to do“
that.

MR. MCNEVIN: Do you have the infrastructure in place
to use anywhere near today this projection of 71,700 by
20207

DR. DRURY: No.

MR. MCNEVIN: By 2020, if I understand, you also plan
to import a great deal more water; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: ' That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: In one of the charts on Page 1 of your
Exhibit E calls for importing of 111,000 acre-feet of water
by year 2020.

Did I read thét right?

DR. DRURY: I don't have that in front of me right
now.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Exhibit D.

MR. MCNEVIN: Exhibit E, Page 1. I could proﬁide my
copy to the witness if you don't want to give him yours.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: That was an exhibit prepared for

the testimony of Richard Atwater who is not testifying. I
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don't know how familiar the witnmess is with that document.

DR. DRURY: I am not familiar with this document.

MR. MCNEVIN: Was that prepared for Inland Empire and
submitted as an exhibit today?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Objection. No foundation. We'lve
had no testimony authenticating this document as an
exhibit.

H.O. BAGGET: Sustained,

MR. MCNEVIN: Does the figure supplied by Mr. Atwater
of 111,000 acre-feet of imported water comport with your
understanding as fhe manager of Inland Empire?

DR. DRURY: I am not familiar with the document he
submitted.

MR. MCNEVIN: Are you familiar with the figures as
manager of your agency?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Objection. Ee is not the manager
of the agency.

MR. MCNEVIN: Pardon me.

In your capacity with Inland Empire are yoﬁ familiar
with the figure for projected water imports by 20207

DR. DRURY: I don't have them roughly available. T
can't pull it off the top of my head.

MR. MCNEVIN: Let's give Mr. Atwater some credit where
credit is due, and I will put this in terms of a

hypothetical, just to put your mind at ease.
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Assuming that Mr. Atwatér's figure of 111,000 acre-feet
per year of imported water is accurate, please.

DR. DRURY: Okay.

MR. MCNEVIN: Will that cause your wastewater flows to
be increased by year 2020?

DR. DRURY: It's possible.

MR. MCNEVIN: Would you look at Exhibit E, Page 3.
qus that show increased wastewater flows projected by
I#land Empire for year 20207

DR. DRURY: Yes.

_ ER. MCNEVIN: Are you, in your capacity with Inland
Empire, familiar with wastewater flow projections?

DR. DRURY: Yes. |

MR. MCNEVIN: So Exhibit E, Page 3, shows an increase
ig wastewater flows projected at about 70,000 acre-feet by
2020, cor?ect?

DR. DRURY: That appears roughly correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: And 70,000 acre-feet increased wastewatei .
flows is almost exactly the same number that you gave me a
minuEe ago, 71,700 acre-feet, of your proposed resuse or
vour planned reuse by 2020; isn't that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: So your projected reuse amount of
wastewater approximately equals the projected increase in

wastewater you are going to generate in 20207
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DR. DRURY: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: Let's talk about storm flow for a
minute. You mentioned a capture of storm flow to mix with
some of the wastewater you plan to percolate. Why do you
need to do that?

DR. DRURY: To meet health department requiiements for
the blending of wastewater before you recharge it.

MR. MCNEVIN: Can you give me a little more detail?
What is that department requirement as you understand it?

DR. DRURY: I can pull out an overhead if you like.

MR. MCNEVIN: If you feel more comfortable with that o
you can give me your unde;standing, either way.

DR. DRURY: Basicaliy, the health department requires
blending, and the amount of blending depends on the
concentration of organicrcarbons.

., MR. MCNEVIN: With your wastewater you are required to
only use approximately one-third wastewater for blending an
the rest has got to be either imported or storm flow?

DR. DRURY: That's roughly the number, yes.

MR. MCNEVIN: You provided the figure of 12,000
acre;feet of storm flows you might use for that puxpose in
Paragraph 8, Line 15, of your testimony?

DR. DROURY: Yes.

MR. MCNEVIN: Did I read that correctly?

DR. DRURY: Yes.

r

d
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MR. MCNEVIN: So you're going to need a vield of 27,000
acre-feet of storm flow for this purpose; is that accurate,
each year?

DR. DRURY: The question of need is either storm watexr
and/or State Project water; it has to be blended. Doesn't
matter, one or the other. -

MR. MCNEVIN: I understand you don't know how much
wastewater or how much imported water you are going to be
buying, but your figure was 12,000 acre-feet that you
needed?

DR. DRURY: That's an approximation, ves,

MR. MCNEVIN: Are you familiar with the rule of Seven?

DR. DRURY: T don't know your slang.

MR. MCNEVIN: My slang is that if you want a yield of
one acre-foot of ztorm water you need to have a storage
volume of seven acre-feet to develop that yield om a
dépendable basis.

Are you familiar with that, phrased that way?

DR. DRURY: No.

MR. MCNEVIN: Can you tell me if you take 12,000
acre-feet of storm flow per year, if you have the capaciﬁy
to_take that, what percentage is that of the average annual
storm flow reaching Prado over the past 30 years?

DR. DRURY: I don't know the number.

MR. MCNEVIN: No more questions.
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H.O. BAGGET: Thank you.
San Bernardino Valley Water Comservation District?
MR. COSGROVE: We have no questions.
H.O. BAGGET: East Valley.
MR. KENNEDY: No.questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Big Bear.
MR. EVENSON: No questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Santa Ana River Local Sponsors?;
MR. DONLAN: No questions.
E.O. BAGGET: City of Ontario.
MR. GARNER: Just a couple.
---000~---

CROSS-EXAMINATION OF INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
BY CITY OF ONTARIO, CUCAMONGA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT,
CITY OF CHINO & MONTE VISTA WATER'DISTRICT
- BY MR. GARNER

MR. GARNER: Eric Garner, once again.

Just a couple questiéns for you, Ms. Stewart.

Is the Cucamonga County Water District a party to the
Chino Basin Judgment?

MS. STEWART: Yes.

MR. GARNER: Is it an active participant in the OBMT
pProcess?

MS. STEWART: It certainly is.

MR. GARNER: Is the same true for the City of Ontario?
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MS. STEWART: Yes.

MR. GARNER: Is the same true for the City of Chino?

MS. STEWART: Yes.

MR. GARNER: Is the same true for the Monte Vista Watexr
District?

MS. STEWART: That's correct.

MR. GARNER: Thank you, ma'am.

No further questions.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Couple of follow-up questions for
Dr. Drury.

- -~000---
REDIRECT EXAMINATION OF INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
BY MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Dr. Drury, although you have
testified that you have been developing plans or the agency
has been developing plans for the last 30 years,
iﬁplementing those plans takes money; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's cqrrect.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: The principal reason that you have
been delayed or been unable to implement those plans is the
fact that there are no resources available to construct the
infrastructure referred to; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: Yes, sir.

MR. CIEIGOYENETCHE: Now, there is another issue with

respect to infrastructure, the development of what has been
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referred to as the ag preserve; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: Yes.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: .What do you understand the ag
preserve to bae?

DR. DRURY: Ag preserve is approximately 13 to 15
square miles of undeveloped agricultural lands that is in
the middle -- lower end of our district, and we will be soon
developing.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: There is essentially no
infrastructure in that region; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: That's c¢orrect.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: And as that region begins to
develop that will afford you an opportunity to construct the
infrastructure; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: Construct the infrastructure at the time of
development, not later when it is more expensive to do so.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Your plans include doﬁble piping
in that region, as well; is that correct?

DR. DRURY: We are discussing dual piping with both of
the major cities involved in that area.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: I have nothing further.

H.O. BAGGET: Any recross?

MR. MCNEVIN: No.

H.O. BAGGET: Any other party?

No.
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Staff.

MS. MROWKA: Mr. Bagget, before we move exhibits, I
would like to have Mr. Ciﬁigoyenetche list the exhibits he
is asking us to accept.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: That is what I was looking for.

MEMBER FORSTER: I have a question about this
judgment. The City of Chino versus the Chino --

MS. STEWART: Basin Municipal Water District.

MEMBER FORSTER: Tell me a little bit about that, what
caused thaﬁ.

MS. STEWART: That judgment -- as a result of the '69
judgment going into effect, the producers in the Chino Basin
had been watching that activity and waiting for that to be
settled before they initiated a process to enter our
judgment. And they began the process shortly after the '69
judgmeﬁt was entered, and then they took a stipulated
agreement to the court in the mid '70s, and it was entered
in L978, January of 1978.

And the foundation was, there was a condition of
o&erdraft and they wanted tq adjudicate the rights within
the Chino Basin, knowing thét the rights along the Santa Ana
River were settled.

MEMBER FORSTER: Okay. Thanks.

H.OQ. BAGGET: Back to the exhibits.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: I would move the written testimony
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as amenged of Douglas D. Drury as Exhibit A.

I would move the written testimony of Traci Stewart as
Exhibit B. | |

I would move the written exhibits to be utilized by bx.
Prury as Exhibit D, since they'have-already been:idéntified
as such.

I would move the Chino Basin Municipal Water District
versus City of Chino judgment as F.

I would move the Orénge County Water District versus
Chino Judgment as G.

And then the resume of Dr. Drury as marked, as H.

MS. MROWKA: Thank you for the clarification.

H.O. BAGGET: If there is no ocbjections, those
documents will be entered into evidence.

MR. FRINK: Just so it is clear, you are then
withdrawing your Exhibit C and your Exhibit E that were
previously submitted?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: That's correct.

Thank vyou.

MR. MCNEVIN: Mr. Bagget, I would move the adﬁission of
Page 3 of the Exhibit E. I believe that the witneés did
authenticate the wastewater flows that are reflected on that
exhibit.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: No objection.

H.O. BAGGET: So Big Bear Municipal Water District --
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MR. CQSGROVE: Excuse me. Just one point, and that is
that I was a little remiss. We probably should have done it
before Inland Empire started up.

There was a question with respect to a proposed
stipulation yesterday“and our client's potential interest in
cross-examining some of the éarties from East Valley Water
District. The witnesses wére indicated and made available.
I haven't Yet had a chance to formulate that stipulation or
talk about the specifics of it with Mr. O'Brien. I wou;d
1ike to do that.
| Before we move on too much further, we would like to,
in Ehe absence of the ability to work out a stipulation on
that, reserve the right for cross-examination of Mr. Martin
briefly.

H.O. BAGGET: If thefe is no objections, then we might
as well dp it now.

Would it be”appropriate to take a recess now?

MR. O'BRIEN: I would suggest perhaps we ought to.go
aﬁéad and finish with Bilg Bear and Mr. Cosgrove and I caﬁ dg
this at the break.

MR. COSGROVE: Forgive the interruption.

H.O. BAGGET: Big Bear.

MS. HAMILTON: Good morning.

H.O0. BAGGET: Cood ﬁorning.

MS. HAMILTON: My name is Sheila Hamilton. I am the
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General Manager of Big Bear'Municipal Water Distiict. Itve
been with the district for about 15 years, seveﬁ of those in
my capacity as general managef. My remarks are going to be
very brief and basicallf just to lay the format for.Mr.
Evenébn who is our engineering consulﬁanﬁ to give his expert
testimony;

As you can see, we do not have an attorney ;epresenting
us today. We didn't feel the nature of our commeﬁts today
warranted legal counsel. So if you will perhaps help us
with any procedural issues so we do the appropriate thing im
filing our testimony.

My remarks will mostly be just to give a little
background of Big Bear Lake. We have seen the overheads.
You are familiar with the location of the lake at the top ©f
the watefshed. A little history on the district.

Thé district owns and operates the ﬁear Valley Dam
which stdres the floﬁsﬁfrom Bear Creék; As we know, Bear
Creek is located in the uQStream portion of the Santa Ana
River watershed and is a major tributary to the Santa Ana
River. The district alsé owng and éperates various
recreational facilities on Big Bear Laké and, of course, the
lake is a reservoir formed by the water sﬁored behind the
Bear Valley Dam.

The reservoir was originally construcﬁed in 1884 by

Bear Valley Mutual Water Company with the construction of
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the original Bear Vaxley Dam. Then in 1912 a larger dam was
constructed and that is the dam we refer to today. The lake
impounds 73,000 acre-feet of water. Important to note, I
think, is that this water is all natural inflow
precipitation. We have no ability to £ill the lake from any
other source. It is not in any way a state project
reservoir; and so once water is released from the lake thére
is no ability to replace it.

The lake was formed as an irrigation reservoir to meet
the'downstream irrigation demands in Redlands for the orange
growers, and over time, as is common with irrigation
reservoirs of that type, it expressed drastic fluctuations
in lake levels. So, in 1964 Bear Valley community decided
that that fluctuation was unacceptable for the economy which
was developing around the lake.

So, the water district was formed and then it took 13
vears of wvarious negotiations, court filings to decide the
management of the lake. And the water district in 1977 was
finally able to purchase the Bear Valley Dam, the land
beneath the lake, and the right to manage the surféce
recreation rights. The water rights, however, remained wi;h
Bear Valley Mutual Company. The purchase price of this
transaction was $4.7 million and that included a stipulated
judgment with Bear Valley Mutual Water Company, San

Bernardino Valley Conservation District, and a group of
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water companies which youiye heard referred to, I think, in
previous testimony as pricr right companies.

These parties to the judgment, as I said, continue to
hold the water rights to the flow in Bear Creek as well ag
to the flow in the Santa Ana River as it leaves the
mountains and enters the valley floor.

Now, the basic concept behind the '77 judgment was that
Big Bear Municipal Water District acquired the right to
store water in the lake:. The way to achieve that was to
meet demands from Mutual for water, either releésing water
from the lake or delivering other water in lieu of releases,
which we now call ocur In Lieu Water Program. So, basically,
when Bear Valley needs water and they call aﬁd say, "We need
X number acre-feet," we can either release it or we can call
our supplier which currently is San Bernardino Valiey

Municipal Water District, and they can deliver State water

-project water in lieu of releasing from the lake. Hench, we

stabilize lake level, and that was the entire goal of the
judgment when it was Fformulated.

This stored water is used to maintain the water level
for various activities, recreational, env;ronmental and
aesthetic. Boating and fishing enthusiasts from throughout
Southern California use the lake for these purposes. It is
also used as water supply for snow making for the Ski areas.

We have two major ski areas in the area, and it is used to
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supply their water to maké snow when natural snowfall is
inadequate for skiing, which generally is every year. It is
generally inadequate in the Big Bear Valley for snow. The
skiers from throughout Southern California and, in fact, the
entire state come to Big Bear during the winter to enjoy the
excellent skiing and other winter sports.

The bottom line is that the stabilized lake level is
pretty much the gtabilization of the economy of Big Bear
Valley.

The judgment provided Big Bear Municipal Water Distriet
with the legal framework to provide these benefits to the
People of the State of California. The purpose of our
presence today is to insure that this judgment is recognized
in your deliberations and that Big Bear Municipal Water |
District will be able to continue to utilize the waters of
Bear Creek and to provide the bemeficial uses in the most
efficient and cost-effective manner.

We appreciate the opportunity to be included in these
proceedings, and I would like to iptroduce our expert
witness, Mr. Donald Evenson. He has been our consultant on
water issues for 16 years. He serves as our representative
oﬁ the Big Bear Watermaster Committee, which oversees the
implementation of the 1977 judgment, and he has been serving
in that capacity since 1987.

Thank you.
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
ﬁY,MR. EVENSON |

MR. EVENSON: Thank you. My name is Don Evenson. T
represent Big Bear Municipal Water District. I am employed
by Montgomery Watson and work out of our Walnut Creek
office. My':eéume has been previocusly submitted t; the
Board when we filed a notice to appear.

I have a map that will illustrate where a couple of the
features are. I have copies here for everybody in the
audience and the Board Members.

Az Sheila mentioned in her opening statement, Big Bear
Municipal Water District owns Bear Valley Dam which is at
the headwaters of Bear Creek and entered into a 1977
judgment, a stipulated judgment, that gave Big Béar
Municipal Water District the right to store water in Big
Bear Lake. And the purpose of this was to stabilize the
water levels, to create recreational, envirommental and
other benefits. This is referred to in the judgment as a
physical solution.

It also provided an opportunity for Big Bear to provide
in lieu water, which is water that would not be reieased
from the lake, so that they could store additiomal water in
the lake. And in so doing, they had to protect all the
downstream water rights holders.

They also had to p:étect the downstream groundwater
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basin through what is referred to as a basin makeup
account. 8o, if there are any deficiencies in flows
entering the San Bernardino-Basin for recharge purposes, Big
Bear Municipal Water District is obligated to provide
supplemental water to protect the downstream groundwater
basins. These activities in the watershed are overseen by a
Watermaster Committee that oversees the judgment, makes sure
that all activities are in compliance with the judgment and
files a report annually with the Superior Court of San
Bernardino County.

| This is referred to as Exhibit B.

A second item is the State Water Resources Control
anrd Order Number 95-4 that was entered into about four
years ago“which required Big Eear Municipal Wﬁter District
as the owner of the dam to‘release a minimum of three-tenths
of a cfs from the dam for fish, local fish, protection
burposes. It also -- this is the location, the upstream
green dot. Just below that, below the Cub Creek tributary
they had to guarantee a minimum of 1.2 cfs at all times.
This is a seven-day running average, to protect the local
trout fishery.

Now, there are times when this is an additional
rquirement. This is water that frequently can also be used
by'mutual. There are also other periods of time where this

water is not needed by mutual and it is a supplemental
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release. And what we feel is that the Seven Oaks Dém
Provides an opportunity to reregulate those releases once
they reach the downstream reservoixr so that they can
subsequently be delivered to mutual as part of their wate:
supply or be delivered to replenishment basins to get full
credit in their basin makeup account. So the pqtential
exists for improved operation of those releases for fish
protection.

As the owner of the dam, Big Bear also has the

responsibility for flood control. They need to protect the

shoreline of Big Bear Lake. They need to prevent
overtopping of the dam and they"need to protect the

downstream property owners from catastrophic floods. Their

goal is to providé these flood control bemefits. But

because the lake stabilization program is increasing the

. lake levels, there is an increased Probability of spills.

In fact, spills will occur more often under the léke
stabilization program then it would without the lake
stabilization program.

So Big Bear has the need to most effectively manage
those flood control releases. 1In fact, their preference is
to release water in periods where it can beneficially be
used rather than be spilled in a noncontrolled manner. So
their goal to better manage these f£lood control releases

would provide additional benefits because these reieases
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could then be credited to the basin compensation account if
they can be captured and recharged rather than through
uncontrolled spills.

Seven Qaks Dam provides an opprortunity for further
improvement of the management of those flood control
releases. And in the event that those releases can't be
fully managed tc the benefit cof Big Bear Municipal Water
District they then can be used by other downstream water
users for their bemeficial usés. So, as a result of those
beﬁefits, the district believes that there is an cpportunity
for better management of tﬁe resources of the waters of Big
Bear Lake, and as a result Ehey do not oﬁject to'revising
thé declaration of fully appropriated'streams to allow
processing of the two specified applications to appropriate
water in the Santa Ana River.

However, we respectfully réquest that the State Board
require three things. One, that the 1977 judgment be fully
regognized and complied with to protect the rights of the
parties of the judgment.  Two, that Big Bear rights to
manage their available resources to provide the water
sﬁpply, recreational, environmental, fishery and flood
coﬁtrol benefits not be adversely affected and preferably
eﬁhanced. And, three, that:any future proceedings be
limited to the two specified applications.

Thank you, and that concludes our statement.
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HE.O. BAGGET: ‘Thank you.

Mr. O'Brien.

MR. O'BRIEN: No questions.

H.O. BAGGET: Mr. McNevin.

MR. MCNEVIN: Thank you.

| ---000---
CROSS-EXAMINATION OF BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
BY ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BY MR. MCNEVIN

MR. MCNEVIN: I am Chris McNevin, again.

Good morning, Mr, Evenson. How many yvears of
experience do you have in the field of water resources?

MR. EVENSON: Approximately 35.

MR. MCNEVIN: Can I ask_you for your indulgence for a
minute“to help me out wikth this rule of seven that Mr. Drury
didn't know about? Can you please explain that to Board?

MR. EVENSON: That came about, I believe it was eight
or ten Years ago, when I was working on a task force, a
statewide task force, to look at conjunctive use of
groundwaters gnd surface waters throughout the state df
California. Bill Mills was the chairman of that task force,
and we were looking at how all the groundwater basins could
be operated copjunctiveiy.with the state water system to
maximize the benefits to the state.

And in so doing we were looking at all the reservoirs
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that were part of the State water project, and it was an
observation that I had made that it looked ag if there was a
ratio of about seven for every acre-foot of water vield from
these reservoirs. It took about seven acre-feet of

storage.

MR. MCNEVIN: So that if you want to create a yield of,
say, 1000 acre-feet of storm flow what storage space do you
need in a reservoir?

MR. EVENSON: That would be about 7,000 acre-feet,
depending -- it would depend on the hydrology of the
particular watershed, the location of the dam. But that
Seémed to be a general number that was applicable when we
were doing the study.

MR. MCNEVIN: By storage, you are not referring to
underground storage space in an aquifer; you are referring
to surface storage in a reservoir?

MR. EVENSON: Correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: Why does this rule apply in Southern
California?

MR, EVENSON: It could apply in sbme of the mountaincus
aieas. For example in Big Bear the ratio is a little bit
higher than seven. I think that the number is closer to 11
or 12. |

MR. MCNEVIN: What's the theoretical underpinning of

the observation? Why do You need so much storage space to
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capture -- why do you need seven times the amount of storage

space for one acre-foot of water?

MR. EVENSON: For two reasons. One, for regulatory

water to carry over between dry years and wet Years and to

accommodate evapo;ation,ldsses that occur from the
reservoirs,
MR. MCNEVIN: Thank you. No more questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Mr. Césgrove.

MR. COSGROVE No questions., Thank you.

H.O. BAGGET: There are -- a number of other Froups

seem to have left. One down, anyway.
City of San Bermardino.
MR. MOSKOWITZ: No.
H.Q0. BAGGET: East Valley.
MR. KENNEDY: No questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Inland‘Empire.
MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: No.
H.O. BAGGET: Chino. Basin,
Local Sponsors.
MR. DONLAN: No quesﬁions.
H.QO. BAGGET: City of Ontario.
MR. GARNER: No.

H.O. BAGGET: Staff.

MS. MROWKA: I have no questions. T simply want to‘go

through their exhibit list before we move those.
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H.O. BAGGET: Yes.
---o0o-~--
CROSS~EXAMIN3IION OF BIG BEAR MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
:BY BOARD
MEMEBER FORSTER: I have a question on your expertise on’
this issue that you were just queried about. I am just
trying to understand this rule of seven.

That ig not the only way to take water and move and put

it into like the Chino groundwater basin. Help me

understand what other ways would they -- would the person
from Inland, Dr. Drury, what other way would he be able to
pPut in storm water flows besides building a reservoir seven
to one?

MR. EVENSON: In the case of Chino Bagin they would use
the existing replenishment basins where the seven to one
ratio would not apply.

MEMBER FORSTER: Thank you.

H.O. BAGGET: The exhibits.

MS. MROWKA: Yes. I have added to the exhibit list,
based on what your submittals were. The testimony of Donald
EVenson was not given an exhibit identification number. T
have labeled it Exhibit D.

The map which you just distributed, which I am
entitling "Key Facilities Related to Big Bear Judgment Map, "

Exhibit E.
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And the resume of Donald Evenson I am listing ag
Exhibit F.
H.O. BAGGET: Would you like those put into evidence?
MS. HAMILTON: Yes, please;
H.O. BAGGET: Any objection?
If not, they will bg entered into evidence for this
hearing.
Let's go down the list and see where we are at.
Chino Basin hasn't been here yet. They are on our
list. |
Local Sponsors, do you have a case in chief?
MR. DONLAN: No.
H.O. BAGGET: City of Ontario.
MR. GARNER: No.
H.0. BAGGET: We have done the end of the list. We
need to take a break to discuss it?
MR. O'BRIEN: Yes, a brief break to discuss the
stipulation.
.H.O. BAGGET: Fifteen minutes.
MR. O'BRIEN: I think ten is Probably fine.
H.Q. BAGGET: 'Ten minutes and then get back.
(Break taken.)
H.O0. BAGGET: Let's get back.
Ready to go?

MR. O'BRIEN: Yes.
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MR. COSGROVE: Preliminarily we have agreed.

In lieu of the cross-examination of the witness from
East Valley Water District we have been provided a copy of
the document this morning that is entitled "Principles of
Agreement.* We would like to submit that document as an
additional exhibit to this proceeding. It ig our
qnderstanding that this document has been reviewed
préliminarily by the East Valley Board and has been
approved, subject to subsequent changes by counsel and
general manager.

Béyopd that, I do not know at this point whether it has
been reviewed by the Board for San Bernardino Valley
Municipal Water District nor Westerm. It is my

understanding it has not been approved by either one of

- those Boards. So, with the understanding that this is not a

finally approved document, we would still like to submif it
as part of the record.

MR. O'BRIEN: I would stipulate to the submission of
the document into the record with those caveats as to the
lack of finality as to the égreement. And I would also
point out that this is a Principles of Agreement document
wﬁich contemplates the negotiation and execution of a.
comprehensive agreement at some point down the road. So
this is the first step of a lengthier process.

MR. KENNEDY: Steve Kennedy on behalf of East Valley.
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As I indicated yesterday afternoon, East Valley's action
yesterday was in good-faith reliance upon the
representations that were made to East Valley that that
document had the unanimous consent of each member of the
Board of Directors of Muni. With all Brown Act
considerations in place, East Valley withdrawal of its
objections to Muni's application or its petition was based
upon that representation,

I agree that to my uﬁderstanding it hasn't been
formally approved by Muni's Board at this time, but we have
been advised that it has been consented to by each‘member of
Muni's Board.

H.O. BAGGET: With that, there is no objection. We
will enter it into the record.

MS. MROWKA: For recérd keeping purposes, this will bhe
Exhibit CD-20.

H.O. BAGGET: Okay. Going to proceed with rebuttal.

MR. O'BRIEN: Yes. We have prepared some rebuttal
testimony, some written:testimony. There are six exhibits
which I have provided to Ms. Mrowka. I don't know if you
have had a chance to pass those out. Probably need to do
that. .

H.O. BAGGET: Proceed.

MR. O'BRIEN: Ms. Mrowka, would it be helpful for

record keeping purposes to go through the exhibits and
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indicate the numbers?
Mr. Frink is nodding his head, so I will do that.
Muni/Western Exhibit 8 is rebuttal testimony, and
there are three witnesses that are part of this; Mr. Beeby,
Mr. Reiter and Mr. Sam Fuller who was listed in our list of
intent to appear as expert.

The second document is a graph, Muni/Western Exhibit
Number 9, a graph entitled "Accumulated Departure from the
ﬁean Flow Near Mentone River Only, Water Years 1914-15
through 1997-98."

Muni/Western Exhibit 10 is another graph entitled

 "Cumulative Flow at Mentone - Base Period May-December Flows

Oniy.“

Muni/Western Exhibit 11 is a graph entitled "Cumulative
Flow at Mentone 1914-91, May-December Flows Only."

Muni/Western Exhibitllz is a graph entitled "Cumulative
Flow at Mentone - Base Period March-May Flows Only."

Finally, Muni/Western Exhibit 13 ig a graph entitled
“Cumulative Flow at Mentone 1914-91 - March-May Flows.
Only."

MR. COSGROVE: May we get copies of everything?

UNIDENTIFIED VOICE: They are going around.

H.O. BAGGET: I think éverybody is ready.

MR. O'BRIEN: ILet's start ﬁith Mr. Beeby.

---000---
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REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT &
WESTERN MUTUAL WATER DISTRICT
BY MR. Q'BRIEN

MR. O'BRIEN: Mr. Beeby, Muni/Western Exhibit 8
contains some rebuttal testimony from you. Have you had an
opportunity to review that rebuttal testimony?

- MR. BEEBY: Yes, I have.

MR. O'BRIEN: Is it true and correct to the best of
your knowledge?

MR. BEEBY: Yes, it is.

MR. O'BRIEN: Could you please summarize thé rebuttal
testimony contained in Exhibit 8.

MR. BEEBY: Yes. As you may imagine, nothing quite
attracts the attention of an expert or an engineer much like
suggesting that his figures are wrong or if they are wrong
that they were done intenkionally to distort things. That's
going to be the summary of two issues that we're raised
vesterday by Mr. Headrick regarding my testimony, which he
had to do --

MR. O'BRIEN: I think you need to turn the mike on.

MR. BEEBY: So the focus of my testimony ié on those
two areas wher; Mr. Headrick suggested I might have made
errors in the hydrologic analysis. Those two areas have to

do with the selection of base period and the lack of
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seasonal evaluation to determine what flows might be
available in the months that are typically known as dry.

First, with regard to the base period, we did an
agalysis last night of the river flows at Mentone only uéing
the same approach that we did for the combined flow which is
accumulated departure from the mean curve. I will not go
int§ all that derivation because I did that yesterday,
except to explain to you that this was for river only. And
tﬁe one that wasg presented yesterday was the combined flow.

One reason we did this was primarily to check what Mr.
Headrick had said, to evaluate whether or not that was
correct. But from a hydrologic standpoint, from an
éngineering viéwpoint, you typically do not take a
pérticular sub area, particularly a small one, and then
subdivide into even subareas to try to prove a particular
point. You are looking to try to determine what might be
available over a long-term aferage or probability of
exceedance. And depending on how complex and big the
hydrologic subarea is, you can subdivide that in a way té
gét almost any answer you want.

I didn't want to get into that situation, which is why
I took the entire watershed upstream of Mentone for the
preliminary analysis.

My Exhibit 9 depicts the accumulated departure from the

mean curve for the river only near Mentone. This ig for the
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same period of record that we analyzed the combined flow for
1914-15 through 1997-98.

Again, the shape of the curve is quite similar to the
combined flow, and the long-term average for that period

depicted on this graph is 25,700 acre-feet. The selected

- 8tudy period that I used and testified about yesterday is

‘the 1971-72 through 1990-91 water year period. And as you

can see there is a slightly higher average amount dufing
that period of time. G:aphically, that is indicated by the
fact that at the beginning of the period the curve is higher
at the end of the period indicating that was slightly wetter
than the normal period.

So to that extent, Mr. Headrick is correct that our
base period is slightly wetter than the long-term average.

If you take that into account, it is about 8 percent
higher than what I testified to yesterday.

MR. O'BRIEN: Sorry, that last statement was confusing
to me, Mr. Beeby. |

MR. BEEBY: Excuse me, the average, long-term average
for the Mentone only flow, which is the 27,800 that I usged
in the amalysis yesterday, is about 8 percent higher than
the actual long-term average at that particular gauge,
indica;ing that that was slightly wetter than what.I used
yesterday by on the order of 8 percent. If you utilize that

8 percent to extrapolate what the potential diversion might
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be, and recognizing that the period that I used is wetter,
if.we use the long-term average instead of my period, my
flows would be reduced by ébout 8 percent.

So, instead of being on the order of 260,000 acre-feet,
they might drop to about 240,000 acre-feet. Now, that's the
arithmetic of the situation. But, again, as I ;estified to
iéter, yesterday, what my objective was was to indicate that
there is a large amount of potential diversion available by
Muni and Western. That conclusion is unchanged and 240,000
or almost a quarter of a million acre-feet of potential
diversion at Mentone to me is a significant amount, and I
wouid not alter my conclusion as a result of this analysis.

I might also point out that the figure I just reported

about, which is 240,000 acre-feet or about a quarter million

.agre-feet of flow during the 20~-year base period on an

aécumulated basis, could still increase if it were not
constrained by the 500 cfs that I used in analysis, which I
explained yesterday as limitation on the release from Seven
Oaks Dam, or the hundred thousand acre-foot annual diversion
amount to be utilized by Muni. If those two factors change
and it went much higher, then, obviously, the quarter.
miilion acre-feet would go higher.

But still I am not trying to pick numbers here with 2-
or 3,000 acre-feet. It is significantly higher than what's

historically been diverted. I might add, this does reflect
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the upstream diversioms at this point. So a1l those
upstream senior water right claimants have had their demands
taken out of this analysis.

The second area that was challenged yesterday was the
fact that my analysis or that I had not analyzed it on a
seasonal basis. AaAnd during cross-examination I explained to
Mz. Cosgrove that my analysis was done on a monthly basis,
but it was monthly by year and not segregated intg the
portions of the year he was concerned about, which is
typically the dry periods of the vear.

So to address that question, and we had the déta
available to do so, we prepared Western/Muni Exhibit 10.
Now, the color registration, I might point out, is mot quite
the same on the overhead screem as it is in your graph, I
will refer to the colors on the hard copy for purposes of
following this along.

This is the cumulative flow during the base period,

- considering only the flows that occur through May and

December. You will note that the bottom scale says year May
to December only, and in this case I am got using water year
because that period overlaps two water years. So, rather
than confuse the issue, or in an attempt not to confuse the
issue, I have just used the year analysis.

These are the cumulated flows for a particular year

during the May to December months. . Again, the area shown
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here is kind of tan, but actually the hard copy on Exhibit
10 shows it as blue, shows that there is about 107,500
acre-feet of cumulative water diversions by the Conservation
District. That is this 19We; portion of the graph.

The upper line on the graph is the combined flow at
Mentone reduced by the upstream diversions to the Southern
Cal Edison canal. Recall tﬁat diversion is to satisfy the
senior water right c¢laimants upstream.

The yellow area has potential diversion by
Westexrn/Muni, again, only May through December months.

Still a fairly substantial portiom of water, 71,000
acre-feet. You divide that 71,000 acre-feet by roughly the
20-year base period, you are getting on the order of 3500
agre-feet annually of average diversions. He;e I am jumping
back to average even though I don't think that is the properxr
way to evaluate it.

Next I prepared Exhibit 11, which is essentially the

- same type of analysis except that it extends the study

period over the periocd of record, from 1914 through
1989-91. Actuwally, that is what that is supposed to be.
51 is the ends year here. The reason we went to '91, I
will state right now, is because we did not have available
to us in the hotel last night the monthly data after 1990,
because that was the end of my historical base period. 8o,

wae've cut this off in 1990.
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These are not exactly equivalent to what was presented
yesterday, and“I take the long-term average amounts.
Nevertheless, what this does show is the cumulative
historical diversions, again, during May through December
period, for the Conservation District have accumulated
217,000, which is this mauve area, which is blue on the haxrd
copy. Again, the top part of the curve is labeled “"The
Combined Flow at Mentone Reduced by the Upséream Diversions
to Southern Cal Edison Canal," showing the potential
diversion by Muni/Westernlover this rather lengthy base
period of 500 -- almost 509,000 acre-feet. 8till a
significant amount. Still reflecting the areas where there
are spikes, which is actually what we are trying to capture
in our -- through the use of the direct diversion;

Another part of my testimony that I really didn'ﬁ
testify to, but Mr. Headrick raised during his diréct
examination, was the use of a conservation pool at Seven
Oaks Dam. So I did take a shot on the doing that, and
estimated from March to May what the flows might bg, which
would be the period that the conservation at Seven Oaks
might be utilized.

In that or to illustrate that I have also prepared
Exhibit 12. Again, this is for the base period that I used
from 1872 to 1991, the same essential description in terms

of the formatting. The flows change because the difference
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here is the monfhs have changed. March flows have jumped
now for the Conservation District cumulative over the
20-year period up to 107,000 acre-feet. The total flows,
w%f up hére, the potential diveﬁsion by Western/Muni is
172,00 acre-feet. Again, tﬁat is a significant amount.

You might ask if you are thinking about the graph I
used previously, why theré is such a huge amount more. This
average is, if you take the 172 and divide that by 20, you
aré‘getting a little over 8,000 acre-feet average during
tﬁat period. The principal difference is that there is such

high flows in March that it distorts these, and it is the

Mérch flows that are affected by snowmelt and heavy runoff.

That was not included in the previous graph which went from °

May to December. That_is the main difference why theie iz a
huge difference, showing the sensitivity, what period you |
use.

Now, Exhibit 13, and I will cut right through this one
because it is essentially.t#e same type analysis. We just
extended the base period. Again, these are cumulative
flows. Conservation District 320. Available potential
diversions by Muni up to 635,000, almost 636,000 acre-feet.

Again, the point of all this is to illustrate that
there is a significant amount of flow available at Mentone
that has not been historically diverted and could be

potentially diverted by Muni/Western.
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I would like to summarize my rebuttal testimony by

pulling up Exhibit 4-12 which wasg bresented yesterday. As

you heard me testify yesterday, there is a caution, if not a

strong warning with explanation points and all bold, about
using averages to evaluafe the potential for diveisions.
This jumps back to the probability of exceedance. And what
is happening here, and thé-reason those flows are .
accumulated in the previous graphs, we are looking at this
period where 26 percentVC£ the time the flow is gréater‘than
the average. That 26 percent of the time where tﬁe flow is
greater than the average is preciéely the types of”flow that
we are trying to capturé through these diversions. Again,
this is not inconsistent with this analysis, and it does
illustrate the danger of';rying to use averages to establish
policy.

And with that, I'll conclude my testimony.

MR. O'BRIEN: Just omne follow-up question. Is it your
understanding that Mr. Headrick did use averages in the
analysis that he performed?

MR. BEEBY: Yes, it is my understanding that is
precisely what he did.

MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you.

Mr. Reiter, starting at Page 5 of Exhibit 8 is some
rebuttal testimony from you. Have you had an opportunity to

review that?
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MR. REITER: Yes, I have.

MR. O'BRIEN: Is it true and correct, to the“best of
your knowledge?

MR. REITER: I had ome correction. Under Item 3, Line
4, the last word says "purchased." The correct term should
be "acquired."t=I am sure the City of San Bernardino would
like to send us an invoicea Point of fact, they provide it
at no charge.

MR. O'BRIEN: Could you please gummarize your
testimony.

MR. REITER: Thank you. The Conservation District has
argued in their case in chief that our petition and
application, therefore, shéuld be denied because there is no
new water in the area above Seven Oaks. I believe Ehis
argument is based on the fundamental misunderstanding just
as to how the Santa Ana River system works, both in the
Physical, institutional and legal standpoint.

The Orange County Judgmént and within the Western
Judgment provided an integrated fashion for the Santa Ana
Rivér to operate in the future, ag it has since 1569 when we
reached the settlement. Under that judgment, as I indicated
yésterday, Muni is obligated to deliver 15,250 acre-feet of
base flow at Riverside Narrows. We can use water from any
sdurce to meet that base flow. As part of the 1969

settlements, the districts entered into contracts. Ome in
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1969 with the City of San Bermardino and one in 1972 with
the City of Colton for wastewater quantities to be dedicated
to this activity.

I believe San Bernardino yesterday in their direct
testimony indicated that in point of fact part of water that
was not available for sale to their private water éompany
with whom they have been negotiating was 16,000 acre-feet
per year. That is the amount contained in the céntract
between Muni and City of San Bernardino. - Likewise, we have
a contract with the City of Colton for a quantity on the
order of 2400 acre-feet per year.

Further, I would like to note for the record that there
are no diversions, surface diversiong, from the Santa Ana
River between the Greenspot Road Bridge, which is
downstream of the CQnservétion District's point of diversion
and Riverside Narrows. As Mr. Beeby has just described,
there is significant quantities of water passing all of the
points of diversion of senior water right claimangs,
including the Conservation District, and quantitiés that are
probably worth acquiring.

We believe that the existence of Seven Qaks Dém will
provide the physical ability to divert those flows. The dam
will have a regulating affect"on the rate of flow. You'tve
heard testimony in the past that flow rates at that point

can be in the order of 60,000 or more cubic feet per
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second. Clearly, nobody is going to build a pipe big enough
to move 60,000 cubic feet per second when it occurs very
infrequently. However, if you have a regulating benefit of
a dam to reduce that rate of flow, we believe that is a goal
that is worth working toward.

Capturing that water would not have any effect, adverée
effect, on meeting the district's obligationm at Riverside
Narrows due to the use of wastewater pursuant to contracts
already in existence, which have been in existence for 30
years, just glightly less than 30 years.

To summarize, the notion that we must prove that there
is, if you will, brand-new water above the dam in order to
pursue the right to divert water in the vicinity of the dam
we believe is inconsistent with the manner in which the
river system actually operates from a physical,
institutional and legal standpoint.

If the Board were to determine that the only water that
could be diverted from Seven Oaks were, in fact, newly
minted water, if you will, to the area ﬁpstream, we believe
that would result in an i;;atiqnal limitation on the ability
of Western and Muni to fully utilize the natural resources
from this area pursuant to the rights that we believe we
a¢quired under Western and Orange County settlements. -

Thank you for your time.

‘MR. O'BRIEN: Mr. Fuller, starting at Page 7 of Exhibit
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8, is your rebuttal testimony. Have you had an opportunity
to review that?

MR. FULLER: Yes, I have.

MR. O'BRIEN: Is it true and correct to the best of
vour knowledge?

MR, FULLER: Yes, it is.

MR. O'BRIEN: Would you please summarize that testimony
for us.

MR. FULLER: Yes. Yesterday in Mr. Headrick's
testimony he suggested that Mr. Beeby did not properly
account for the water being diverted by Bear Valley Mutual
Company at the auxiliary diversion point near powerhouse --
the old Powerhouse Number 3.

I think, believe Mr. Beeby and Mr. Van repb:ted that
inspection of U.S. Geological Survey records indicated that
during the period of study that Mr. Beeby had used, the
auxiliary diversion was used infrequently and the amount of
that assumption might result in a 5 percent difference in
the numbers, |

I think Mr. Headrick also suggested Bear Valley may in
the future use this auxiliary diversion point to a greater
extent. And I think what Mr. Headrick was getting at is
that as part of the construction of Seven Oaks Dam, Southern
California Edison Company relocated Powerhouse Number 2 to

the present location of Powerhouse Number 3. And in doing
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that they comstructed a pipeline from Powerhouse Number 2 to
forebay all they way down to what was the old Powerhouse
Number 3 and renamed Powerhouse Number 3 Powerhouse Number
2. 1In doing that they destroved a well at the old
Powerhouse Number 2 that intercepted underflow from the bed
of the Santa Ana River and pumped that into the penstocks
that led to Powerhouse Number 3 then. That well produced,
when first started, about Ewo and a half cfs and qgickly
tapered off to about 1.8 éfs. I've shown it about 2 here.
Bear Valley will continue to divert that underfilow when

needed for their uses through the auxiliary gauge, because

" as the water flows in the bed of the Santa Ana River, it

runs into the Seven Oaks Dam core trench and it pools up
béﬁind the dam and eventually flows out through the outlet
works. Bear Valley will be able to divert that watexr as
Surface flow from the outlet of Seven Oaks Dam in those
Years when they need it to supplement their flqws coming
down through the penstock, where they Qet the majority of
water.

S0, Bear Valley also has another interception gallery;
or infiltration gallery, in the streambed near Gréenspot
Road Bridge. This is called the Redlands Tunnel. That
Redlands Tunnel -- the water that would have historically
been diverted from Redlands could also be diverted through

the auxiliary gauge. That flow rate is approximately 2 cfs
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nearly year-round. 8o Bear Valley will Probably, and this
is speculation on my part as well ag Mr. Headrick's,
Probably pick up the 4 cfs at the auxiliary diversion to
supplement their flows in the Edison system as neeqed.

Again, as documented in USGS records and as mentioned
yvyesterday by Mr. Beeby and Mr. Van, the auxiliary gauge has
not been used frequently during the study period that we
have used, and sa it does not result in a serious error, a
significant error, in the period of study that we used.

So, in sum, Mr. Headrick may be correct in suggesting
that Bear Valley will continue to take water there. But the
amount of water they take there should not seriously affect
the diversionsg available to the San Bermardino Vailey
Municipal Water District and Western Municipal Water
District.

This concludes my presentation.

MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you.

That concludes our rebuttal testimony.

H.O. BAGGET: Any questions? See if everybody ==
Orange County. “

MRf MCNEVIN: No.

H.O. BAGGET: San Bernardino.

MR. COSGROVE: Yes.

---000---

//
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CROSS-EXAMINATION OF REBUTTAL THESTIMONY OF
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY MONICIPAL WATER DISTRICT &
WESTERN MUTUAL WATER DISTRICT
BY SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BY MR. COSGROVE

MR. COSGROVE: Mr. Beeby, I guess I will start with
yoﬁ. You originally defined the b;se period as
representative for future flows in part beéause you
concluded that that base period was conservative; isn't that
what you testified to?

MR. BEEBY: Yes. Yes, I did.

MR. COSGROVE: Now you are telling us, essentially it
seems to me; acﬁnowledging that the flows on which you
based the amount of water that is availabie, that was
actually wetter than average as opposed to the.drier than
average which led you to éonclude éhat the base period was
conservative?

MR. BEEBY: I would not agree with that. What you are
dding is mixing apples and qranges.r My analysis was based
o the combined flbw which, in fact, is conservative in that
it slightly underestimated the long-term average. i do not
nééessarily agree with the approach that you can subdivide
this Sasin into a smaller aréa in order to illustrate a
different effect.

It is correct, however, that if you take the river only
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gauge, the base period, the 1971-72 through 1990 base
period, is approximately 8 percent wettgr than thg long-term
a&eragé.

MR. COSGROVE: _Appies and oranges, Mr. Beeby, is
entirely the point. Because the base period was defined
with all three gauges, and yvet the amount of water that was
available was taken from two. All tﬁree gauges showed a dry
pexriod, but when you looked at the two gauges,_which led to
the conclusions of available water, that was a wet period?

MR. BEEBY: No. That is precisely why vou don't
separate thege things intq small subareas. What we are
trying to estimate is a reasonable base period to use Ffor
the entire upstream portion of the Santa Ana River system,
upstream from Mentone. So, you can -- we can make this
argument about whether it‘is appropriate to use smaller
subareaé, but I just don't agree that that is the p:oper
approach. And if it were, we are only talking take an 8
percent difference, anyway.

MR. COSGROVE: Regardless of the propriety of dividing
subareas, did you or did you not take your quantities of
water available from the two gauges that you -- whose
analysis you presented to us for the first time ;his
morning? It was the auxiliary gauge and the Mentone gauging
staﬁion?

MR. BEEBY: Yes. The numbers that I --

CAPITOL REPORTERS (916) 923-5447 333




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

13

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. COSGROVE: That is all I need to know.

MR. O'BRIEN: I think the witness should be entitled to
complete his answer to the question.

MR. COSGROVE: I think he did.

MR. O'BRIEN: I think you interrupted him.

H.O. BAGGET: Allow the witness to finish.

MR. COSGROVE: Go ahead.

MR. BEEBY: The numbers I presented this morning were
the combined flow readings, gauge readings, that I testifiéd
to yesterday less the upstream diversions.

MR. COSGROVE: Less the SCE flows?

MR. BEERBY: TYes.

MR. COSGROVE: And if I understand the charts that you |
presented today correctly, what you've done is adjusted it
for that 8 percent difference between the - well, you
identified an 8 percent difference; is that correct?

MR. BEEBY: 8 percent difference is between the
lqng-term average and the average flow during the 1971“to
1972 base period?

MR. COSGROVE: Do you believe it is appropriate to
extrapolate that 8 percent reduction in the overall flows
from cumulative based on that 8 percent conclusion that you
réacﬁed with regard to what I characterize as the wetter
nature of the flows at the two gauges from which you based

your estimate of available water?
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MR. BEEBY: Well, the reason I did the adjustment on
the cumulative was to give an order of magnitude estimate of
what the effect might bé. So I think the answer to your
question is yes. What I did was just take that off of the
total cumulative. The charts that are shown up there are
not adjusted. Those are the raw data.

MR. COSGROVE: My question, I suppose, then becomes do
you still believe that the base period that you selected is
appropriate for predicting the amounts of flows‘that are
Prospectively and preseg;ly available at the Saﬁta Ana Riﬁer
near Mentone? '

MR. BEEBY: To answer that question I have to come back

to the idea that the selected period that I used to study

_this is based on that. That is the fact; that is what I

used. I alsco indicated in response, I think, to a.Board“s
question yesterday that I may take a look at a different
study period as we get dowm to the application process.
Because my objective in this level or at this phase of the
investigation was not to precisely quantify what‘the
potential diversion might be, but merely to indicate that it
is a large amount, significantly greater than what has
historically been diverted and that the moment of those
potential diversions by Muni/Western would not affect
historical diversiom and would not affect negativeiy tﬁe

terms and conditioms of ‘the Orange County Judgment.
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MR. COSGROVE: So that the base period ﬁay vary
depending on the objective of the study?

MR. BEEBY: That is not correct.

MR. COSGROVE: The use -- you previously used monthly
averages you said in the direct exam. You used monthly data
which you collected by yvears as opposed to month. Is that a
fair characterization?

MR. BEEBY: No.

MR. COSGROVE: Explain to me -- because you did use
monthly data in your original direct exam?

MR. BEEBY: Correct. Let me explain the full process.
We had either data from the Conservation District or data
fiom the USGS gauging stations. TUSGS gauging statiocns are
typically reported in average daily flows, so many cfs per
day. To get those to monthly basis, typically, you can take
those cfs days and convert them to the number of acre-feet
that would occur in that month based on the number of days
in that month. That was our starting point. So that is how
we used the monthly flows.

Now, when I report the amnual flows, both today and
yesterday, that ig the sum 6f 12 months that are included ig:
wﬁtér year from October lst through September 30th.

MR. COSGROVE: The base data was still monthly?

MR. BEEBY: Which is derived from average daily, ves.

MR. COSGROVE: You have criticized, I think again
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today, the use of the Conservation District of monéhly
average flows. That is correct?

MR. BEEBY: No. I haven't criticized the use of
monthly average flows. I criticized their use of averages
in trying to characterize a long-term period of récord.

MR. COSGROVE: I would understand that to be the same
thing: Thank you for the clarifiéation.

Bﬁt the point being.that vou believe that, for example,
the chart that was shown by Conservation District which
showed the monthly flows in the river by average, that that
was an inappropriate anmalysis, correct?

MR. BEEBY: Yes. Because it was the average of a 12-
or 15-month period to show that the average flow in May, fox
example, is some number. Yes, that is inappropria£e.

MR. COSGROVE: I think you testified earlier that the
better way to do that would be to show an exceedance curve
when those flows will be exceeded or probability of
exceedance curve?

MR. BEEBY: I suggested that the probability of
exceedance curve is used as another tool to help people
understand the reliability of supply. I still think the
best way to do it is take the historical record, as I have
done in these exhibits présented today, and determine how
much water can ﬁe scalpé§ in the months where there is

excess flows that are not historically diverted.
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MR. COSGROVE: Have you used that tool in any way to
assess how often the types of peak flows that you that can
scalp occurred on a monthly basis?

MR. BEEBY: I have notldone probability of exceedance
on a monthly basis.

MR. COSGROVE: Mr. Reiter, a couple questions for you.
D§ I understand correctly from your testimony in paragraph
-~ forgive me for just a second. Under Paragraph 6 you say,
to summarize, the notion that Muni/Western must establish
the existence of new water upstream of Sé;en Oaks Dam in
o?der to pursue a right to divert watér in the vicinity of
thé dam is inconsistent with the manner in which the Santa
Aﬁa River system functions from a physical, institutional -
and légal standpoint.

Is that an accurate statement of your understanding of
your testimony here today?

MR. REITER: That's wﬁat the testimony is.

MR. COSGROVE: I believé you said tha; to even suggest
that would impose an irratiomal limitation on these
proceedings and the results?

MR. REITER: I believe so, based on our testimony of
Mr. Beeby there has been water that has not been previously
used.

MR. COSGROVE: Have you reviewed the file with respect

to the application that your agency has made that is here,
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kept here with the State Board?

MR. REITER: Some time ago.

MR. COSGROVE: Were you present at a meeting with
Melanie Collins on Jume 13, 1997, which apparently included
Mr. O'Brien, Mr. Fuller, Curtis Van, and included Melanie
Colling and a number of other people from the State Board
staff discussing this petition?

MR. REITER: I believe I had been at all meetings that
we had with staff, Bcard staff.

MR. COSGROVE: Do you recall any discussion from the
State Board in connection with any of those meetings where
your agency was told to find the source of the water that
Orange County Water District says is wasting to the ocean
and that if none of it is coming through the Seven Oaks Dam
and coming from a downst:éam tributary instead, then amounts
recorded at Ball Road would have no use to SBV and MWD?

MR. O'BRIEN: Excuse me, Mr. Bagget. He seems to be
reading from a document. I think it is only fair %hat the
witness have a chance to see this document.

H.0. BAGGET: I would agree.

MR. COSGROVE: That is fine.

I will show it to ydu first. It is my only copy. This
is a document that cqmes from a file, dated June 13th, I
believe, 1997. It is a memorandum entitled “Contaét Repozrt®

from the Division of Water Rights.
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Would you like to see this before?

MR, O'BRIEN: I am going to object to the introduction
of this document on grounds of no foundation orx
authenticity. I think it is irrelevant to this proceeding
apd it is hearsay. Ms. COliins is not here. She is the
autbor of the document. éheris not here for me to
cross-examine. I think it is inappropriate for him to
gquestion this witness about.a document prepared by someona
else about contents of a meeting.

MR. COSGROVE: I would like to be heard on that.

MR. FRINK: I could answer the question he just

' MR. COSGROVE: Go right ahead.

MR. FRINK: The document was included in a file that
was already in as Staff Exhibit 1. At the time that that
was a accepted into evidenceuthe Hearing Offiéer indicated.
that he would respect the limitations on use of hearsay that
are set forth in Board regulations. It is in the record
already;

MR, C'BRIEN: Nonetheleés, I stand by my hearséy
objection and my other objections. I move to strike the
document on that basis.

MR. COSGROVE: Under Government Code 11513(DP),
hearsay can be used so 1oﬁg as it is not being'used as an

independent to support independent point, but it is
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permigsible to be used.

In addition, what we are going for here is bagically it
is inconsistent with the-testimony currently on what is to
be required is inconsistent with the direction,-under at
least under this memo, the Board has given as to what needs

to be established, and I don't see where that is

inadmissible in any respect in this proceeding.

MR. O'BRIEN: I just Ehink it is irrelevant ;o hear the
thoughts and opinions of a staff member df this Boérd who is
no longer involved in this process, no longer employed with
the Board as to what the requirements of the Board.
purportedly were with respect to this proceeding. It is
completely jirrelevant to what we are trying to accomplish
here.

MR. FRINK: I think there is a question of reievangy,
The autho:ﬂof the memorandum isﬁ;t here and unablerto give
her opinions on it. Aﬁd,.in any event, the opinions of a
former staff member do not represent the opinions of the
Board. If you want to quickly ask Mr. Reiter if'he agrees .
with the particular statément, that may clarify it. I
wouldn't spend a lot of time om it.

MR. COSGROVE: What I wanted to ask him was whether it
was instructed at anytime by the Board to address this issue
as part of these proceedings or wﬁether an;one f:oﬁ his

agency was instructed to do so as part of these proceedings.
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MR. O'BRIEN: The question was whether the Board
instructed him or whether Ms. Collins might have instructed
him. I think there is an important difference.

MR. COSGROVE: The Board or its staff.

MR, FRINK: A sta?f member does not speak on behalf of
the Board. If you want to ask the witness if he agrees with
what Ms. Collins stated there, you can ask that. That‘is
about as far as it will go.

H.O. BAGGET: I would concur.

MR. COSGROVE: I would 1ike to make an offer of proof
on that before further qggstioning~is not permitted.

That offer would be that instructions that were
received by this applicant. from staff acting in the normal
course of its business, i believe, are relevant to the
issues that are raised by the petition. Certainly, it is
relevant to the contention .that a fundamental basis on which
much of my client's testiﬁony is directed and taken from
this staff report. As an indication of what the Board staff
is interested that the evidence needs to be directed to is
appropriate. And qu the applicant to come in now and say
that this type of analysis is irratiomal and completely
w:ong, when the State Board's own memoranda say whether or
not it is binding on the Board or whether or not it is a
final determinative issue, that it is relevant to the

proceeding and that that has to be shown. I think that that
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belongs as part of this proceeding.

And, therefore, I would like to request that that line
of questioﬁing be permiﬁted and that the contact report
remain an exhibit and that it not be stricken.

MR. O'BRIEN: I don't know if that is an offer of proof
or a motion to reconsider. But YOu have ruled on'ﬁis_
objection. If the chair is not inclined to change his
ruling, I have nothing further to say.

If you want to hear argument in response to that, I
would be glad to address it.

H.O. BAGGET: Off the recorxd.

{Discussion held off the record.)

MR. FRINK: Mr. Bagget, after loocking at the contact
report, it does appear to represent a statement ofra staff
member at the time. The document has already been admitted
into the record as part of Staff Exhibit 1. I believe that
the witness has made it clear in his testimony this morning
that he disagrees with the analytical approach that that
staff member suggested iﬁ the contact report. Both pieces
of evidence are in the record. I think belaboring it
further is repetitious and irrelevant, and for that reason
should not be allowed. We should not spend any more time on
it today.

MR. COSGROVE: And that hint is taken. I will move

on. I do want to make sure that this contact report has not
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been stricken from the record.

H.O. BAGGET: The contact report was admitted to the
record yesterday, so it remains im the record. But T will
sustain the objection.

Mﬁ. COSGROVE: No further questions.

Thank you.

My only other question would be for Mr. Fuller.

Mr. Fuller, are you aware whether the facilities that .
Bear Valley uses to take water off of what you have called
fhe auxiliary diversion poigt has been modified any time
recently?

MR, FULLER: Yes, thef have been modified.

MR. COSGRCVE: DAs I understand it, those facilities
h@ve been modified to include two 40-inch pipes. Ig that
accurate?

MR. FULLER: I actually think they are two 48-inch
diameter culverts under the access road that the Coxrps of
Engineers left in the canyon for their accessibility to the
dam, ves.

MR. COSGROVE: What's the combined capacity of those
two 48-inch culverts?

MR. FULLER: I don't know the answer to that questiom,
assuming other factors involved for me to give you an answer
to that.

MR. COSGROVE: There is not a design capacity of those
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Pipes that you are aware of?
MR. FULLER: I don't know who would have done that work
to design those, no.
MR. COSGROVE: I don't have any further questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Thank you.
City of San Bernardino.
| -==-o0o~--
CROSS-EXAMINATIQN OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY MUNTCIPATL. WATER DISTﬁICT &
WESTERN MUTUAL WATER DISTRICT
BY THE CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO
BY MR. MOSKOWITZ
MR. MOSKOWITZ: I am Joel Moskowitz. Again, I have a
couple clarifying questions for Mr. Reiter.
| Mr. Reiter, turning back to Paragraph 3 on Page 5 of
the rebuttal submissionﬂ You stated here that Muni entered
into contracts with the cities of San Bernardino and Coltom
to obligate specified quantities of water dischargéd from
the cities' treatment élaﬁts. Now these contracts were
entered into in '69 and '72.
Is that your understanding, you still don't get it from
two different plants nowadays?
MR. REITER: No, that's correct, there were two plants
at the time the contracts were entered in.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Today, however, vou get all the water
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from the RIX plant?

MR. REITER: That's correct.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Do you know how much water you purchase
from the City of San Bermardino from that plant?

MR. REITER: If you recall my opening statement, I
changed that word from "purchased" to "acquired."™ There is
a Quantity of 16,000 acre-feet from the City of San
Bernardino. I believe it is 2400 acre-feet from the City of
quton.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: That was my next question. 'The City of
Colton is 2400 acre-feet. Let me get on to the acquired
versus purchased. Ign't it true that the City of San
Bernardino can, under specified circumstances, get a credit
for state project Water uﬁéer that contract in return for
that supplied water?

MR. REITER: Yes.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Could you explain those terms?

MR. REITER: This is the best of my recollection. It“s_"
been a while since I read the contract.

The City of San Bernardino and the City of Colton were
subject to pumping limitations under an old case, Orange
Cbunty versus City of Riverside, et al., of which San
Bernardino, Colton and Redlands were part of the "et al.,"
which limited their pumping. Under the 1969 Orange County

Settlement that was one of two judgments affecting our area
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which Orange County is prohibited from enforcing, provided
the base flow requirements are met.

The provision of state project Water to San Bernardino
is conditioned on the fact that if somebody subsequently or
some party subsequently‘in judicial action manqges.to limig
San Bermardino's water tp a quantity of less than a quantity
they are limited by unde: the Orange County Settlement, the
district agreed to provide state project Water at no
charge.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: That was in consideration in part for

- the supplying of wastewater at Riverside Narrows; was it

not?

MR. REITER: I think there were two facets there. Omne
was by district's accepting ﬁhe obligation to meet the base
flow requirements that allowed San Bernardino to have their
limitation lifted; and the other part of the action was,
yes, if somebody independently succeeded in limiting San
Bernardino's right to produce from the San Bernardino Basin
that our district would provide, at no charge, prbvide state
pProject water. Yes, it was basically an exchange for the
wastewater.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: There are other things that might
restrict San Bernardino's productiqn of groundwater, aren't
there, such as contaminatibn or prior rights or other

things? It is not just limited to that judgment?
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MR. REITER: There are.other things that would limit
their production, but I do not think they were spoken to in
that agreement.

MR. _Mosxow:t'ré: Your recollection of that agreement, it
specificélly referenced that judgment rather than pumping
limitation?

MR. REITER: Yes. I think it referenced that Jjudgment
and then if somebody subsequently got another judgment
against San Bernardino, a third party, if you will, other
than Orange County at that point our district had to
provide water.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: You mentioned that the amount that the
City of San Bermardino is plnnning to sell to another
private entity is the same number as the amount we are
supplying under ouxr contrnct with you; you mentioned that?

MR. REITER: If I said that, I misspoke. What T was
trying to say, the quantitf'in excess of the 16,000 was w&ét
they were planning to gell.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: It is not as though they are going te
take water away from you and ship it somewhere else?

MR. REITER: I did not mean to put that in the record,
if that is the way it came across.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: You didn't say that. Just wanted to
make sure there was no confnSion in the mind of the

listener. That is all.
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H.O. BAGGET: East Valley.
MR. KENNEDY: Yes, briefly.
---000---
CROSS -EXAMINATION OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY o?
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT &
WESTERN MUTUAL WATER DISTRICT
BY EAST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
BY MR. KENNEDY

MRf KENNEDY: ﬁust_a couple of questions for Mr.
Reiter,

Mr. Reiter, you indicated in your rebuttal testimony
that you wanted to presént some argument regarding the legal
framework behind the Santa Ana River, the rights in the
Santa Ana River was part of what your rebuttal testimony was
regarding? |

| MR. REITER: My point was with regard fo tha Orange
County Settlement and the opportunities it provided for
areas upstream to conserve water.

MR. KENNEDY: Have you discussed the senior water right
holders in the Santa Ana River, specifically Paragraphs 4, 5
and 6?

MR. REITER: Just in the context of the fact that 4if
their needs were met, that water downstream from there
should be available.

MR. KENNEDY: Okay. Under Section 9 of the application
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that has been filed by Muni, that provision states that the
permit which is sought by this application would be junior
as a matter of law to such pre-1914 appropriate rights of
Edison and mutual water companies that are listed. One of
the mutual water companies that is listed is North Fork
ﬁater Company. Is that your recollection?

MR. REITER: I believe so, ves.

MR. KENNEDY: Does that continue to be the position of
Muni at this time?

MR. REITER: Yes.

MR. KENNEDY: Does that -- will that be the position of
Muni if this petition is granted and there will be a further
hearing on the application?

MR. O'BRIEN: Can we have a clarification when he talks
about the pre-1914 xights, I don't want to get into a
situation where we are talking about Mr. Cavender's version
where it is basically unlimited rights. If we can have some -
definition of quantities we are talking about I think it
would be a more relevant question.

MR. KENNEDY: I am simply asking Mr. Reiter if the
position of Muni, as stated in its application, continues to
be the same today and will continue to be the same if the
petition is granted and we have further hearing on the
application.

I am not asking Mr. Reiter any statements as to the
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actual numbers, but rathe? just whether or not thé position
of Muﬁi remains the same.

MR. REITER: I believe that the agreement that yoﬁ
submitted yesterday, alluded to yesterday, between our two
districts, anticipate we execute in the near futu:e speaks
tc that issue. I believe the answer is yes.

MR. KENNEDY: Muni is a signatory to the exchange
plain; is that correct?

MR. REITER: That's correct.

MR. KENNEDY: And the water rights of North Fork Water
Company was included as pért of exchange plain; is that
correct?

MR. REITER: Lumped together with Bear Valiey and
Lugonia, yes.

MR. KENNEDY: And it is your understanding that the
terms of the exchange plan there is a provision that
pProvides that no party in the exchange plan wiil3lose the
water rights that are recognized in the exchange plan by
reason of nonuse?

MR. O'BRIEN: Mr. Bagget, excuse me. I think we are
going beyond the scope of the rebuttal testimony that was
presented. I think if he wanted to get into issues about
the exchange plan ox other issues that the proper time to do
that was yesterday. This ought to be limited to the

rebuttal testimony.
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H.O. BAGGET: I would concur.

MR. KENNEDY: If I may, Mr. Reiter's rebuttal testimony
dealt with the legal framework under which the senior water
rights holders exercise their pre-1914 water rights. That
is specifically referenced in Sections 4, 5 and § of his-
testimony. And, in fact, he indicates that those rights or
the water that could be captured as result of this
application if the petition is granted would be in excess of
the historical diversion requirements of the senior water
right holders.

I am simply following up on that portion of Mr.
Reiter's rebuttal testimony.

MR. O'BRIEN: I withdraw my objection. I don't want to
be an obstructionist. I think we can focus in on rebuttal
testimony. This can be moved along.

MEMBER FORSTER: I have a qﬁestion. Are you just
confirming Number 5, what he said? Why don't you just read
that and ask him?

MR. KENNEDY: No, that is mot my intent. My questionm
is whether or not it is the‘position'of Muni that the
provisions of the exchange plain that provide that water
rijhts of the senior water right holders have not been lost
by nonuse continues to be sdﬁething that Muni continues to
enforce through this proceeding.

So you may answer that question.
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MR. O'BRIEN: I would like to have a definition of
“seniér water right holders" that he is talking about.

MR. KENNEDY: Since your rebuttal testimony refers to
senior water right claimagts, perhaps you can define how you
used that term in vour rebuttal testimony.

MR. REITER: We were talking about the historic demands
of North Fork, Bear Valley, Lugonia, Redlands water and the
Edwards Line as part of the Bear Valley North Fork
system. I think that the agreement that was stipulated into
evidence this morning speaks for itself as far as my
district‘s Beoard's positidn with regard to existing rights.

MR. KENNEDY: So, the entities that you jus£ named,
those would qualify as senior water right claimants as you
used the term in your rebuttal testimony?

MR. REITER: People uystream of that Greemnspot Bridge.

MR. KENNEDY: That would include North Fork Water
Company?

MR. REITER: That's correct.

MR. KENNEDY: As I asked and I think as you answerédg
North Fork Water Company is a party to the exchange plan?

MR. REITER: Yes. -

MR. KENNEDY: And Muni is a party to the exchange plan?

MR. REITER: Yes.

MR. KENNEDY: And Section 14A of the exchange plan

provides that no party under that agreement will lose any

CAPITOL REPORTERS (916) 923-5447 ' 353



10

i1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

right by nonuse; is that correct?

MR. O'BRIEN: You know, I am going toc object on
relevance, beyond the scdpe of rebuttal testimony.

Yesterday you had a tight rein on relevance issues.

am going to impose -~
H.O. BAGGET: I would sustain the objection.
Get to where you're going.
MR. RKENNEDY: .I have no further questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Thank you.
Inland Empire..
‘MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: No questions.
H.QO. BAGGET: Big Bear.
-MR. EVENSON: No questions.
- H.O0, BAGGET: Chino Basin Liocal Spousors.
MR. DONLAN: No questions.
H.O. BAGGET: 2aAnd Ciﬁy of Ontario.
MR. GARNER: No questions.

H.O. BAGGET: Thank you.

MR. O'BRIEN: We would just offer into evidence

Exhibits 8 through 13, Muni/Western 8 through 13.

T

H.O. BAGGET: If no objections, they are entered into

evidence.
Thank you.
Orange County.

MR. MCNEVIN: Thank ‘you.
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H.O. BAGGET: While waiting for rebuttal, how many
other rebuttals? -

Two other parties.

Do you have a rough estimate on what your time is going
to be?

MR. COSGROVE: I wou;d say about 20 minutes.

MR; CIHIGOYENETCHE;  About 15 minutes.

H.O. BAGGET: I guess the debate, we will sée how this
one goeé. If we can e#tend this one straight through to
1:00 and be done, that would certainly be my prefetence. We
will see. I imagine a few other pecple in the audience
also.

MR. MCNEVIN: We are ready to proceed, your Homor.

H.O0. BAGGET: I havera robe, but I didn't weér one up
here.

---000---
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BY MR. MCNEVIR .

MR. MCNEVIN: Mr. Mills, yesterday Mr. Moskowitz
indicated that OCWD's Exhibit 16 did not represent increased
storm flow as a result qf urbanization upstream, but merely
represented a contrast between a wet period and a dry
period.

Have you had an opportunity to study this issue
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further?
MR. MILLS: Yes, I have.

MR. MCNEVIN: Have you drawn any conclugions as to

MR. MILLS: Yes, I have. I would like to begin by
refreshing my memory as to the contents of this particular
graphic. The graphic illustrates the runoff storm flow at
Prado Dam beginning the pgriod 1963-64 to 19%7-58 in terms
of the runoff divided by the number of inches of rainfall.
And as can be seen, we show an increasing trend.

Daring this period of time there was, of course, wet
periods and dry periods. Short dry period occurred during
the mid '70s and, of course, there was a substantial dry
périod that occurred during last of '80s and early 1990s,
known as the six-year drought period.

MR. MCNEVIN: Would you identify that exhibit?

. MR. MILLS: Thisg is Exhibit 16 from yestérday's
festimony.

We would like to provide here a new exhibit, Exhibit
Nﬁmber 38, where we took a look at simply the last portiom
of that -- the more recent portion of that graphic beginning
iﬁ 1978-1979 to the present. And we have shown also a
computer-generated best fit curve here, and we sSee once
again there is an increasing trend in the runoff or per inch

of rainfall.
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We do note, though, ﬁhat there are five years in here
that are relatively wet, and we felt that may skew the
analysis. So we then prepared another exhibit, which we'd
like toc call Exhibit 39, in which we have deleted those wet
years. And you can see that we still have a trend line, an
upper trend line. I want to be careful to note that we
changed the scale on this substantially here because we
don't need the high numbers. But you still see a trend line
here, slope of a trend line is less than it was bq prior
charts because we moved:those five wet years.

We offer this as still evidence that there is
increasing runcff at Pradd, per inch of rainfall, due to the
increased urbanization and channelization of floﬁs upstream
of Prado.

MR. MCNEVIN: Thank you.

Over the past 30 years could you describe the average
annual storm flow at Prado based on the Watermaster reports?

MR. MILLS: Yes. I've done a calculation of that, and
over this period of time there has been approximately 929,000
acre-feet of annual -- average annual runoff at Prédo Dam
over the 30-year period from storm flow.

MR. MCNEVIN: The 12,000 acre-feet per year of storm
flow that Dx. Drury testified he may use to blend with his
recycled water would equal what percent of this average

annual storm flow over the past 30 years?
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MR. MITLS: The 12,000 would be approximately
one-twelfth of the average annual ambunt or about 8 percemnt
of the runoff that has occurred historically.

MR. MCNEVIN: At the risk of creating further
confﬁsion, let's go back to the rule of seven for a moment.
Does the rule of seven apply in the event that Inland Empire
Utilities Agency desires to capture and infiltrate storm
flows using the existing replenishment basins?

MR. MILLS: The rule of seven applies. I've had a
discussion with Don Evenson during the recess, and we both
agreed that our work during the conjunctive use projects
several years ago indidated to us that in oxder to develop
one acre-foot per year of annual firm yield, one needed to
have at least seven acre-feet of storage capacity in order
to do that.

Thus, this means that for 12,000 acre-feet of annual
yYield one would need a surface reservoir of seven times that
value. BAnd the surface reservoir should be located, have to
be located, on a drainage course. This would include a
reservoir somewhat similar to Prado Dam or similar to the
Sevgn Oaks Dam, having the water conservation pool entirely
dedicated, that capacity entirely dedicated to that
pa;ticular purpose. And I think that the recharge
facilities that are indicated there would be the lecation of

tﬁé water, where the water would be delivered to. So that
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there is no connection between the recharge facilities and
the requirement for having this large volume of storage in
order to generate the 12,000 acre-feet of average annual
firm yield for that particular program.

MR. MCNEVIN: Thank you.

Last, I understand that you wish to correct a potential
misunderstanding in your testimony yesterday. Mr. Garner,
referring to the MOU which was OCWD Exhibit 8, quoted
language that said OCWD did not seek to obtain any right
against the parties to the stipulated judgment which was
inconsistent with the stipulated judgment.

And he then asked if'OCWD was seeking any ;ight at all
against the upstream entities.

Did you wish to amend your answer?

MR. MILLS: I would like to clarify that with this
statement. The intent of the MOU was ﬁo affirm the
stipulated judgment, and I stand behind that statement. The
MOU was drafted, in fact, by Mr. Garmer's office. I think
by Mr. Jim Morris. And I do not wish to go beyond the MOU
at this particular time. If anyone wishes to amend the
MOU, we can discuss it. But I am not comfortable expressing
a legal opinion aé to the affect of the application. 8o I
cannot agree with Mr. Garner's statement. Fortdnately, I am
not a iawyer, and I leave MOU's to them.

MR. MCNEVIN: No more questions.
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H.O. BAGGET: Mr. O'Brien.

MR. QO'BRIEN: No gquestions.

MR. FRINK: Mr. Cosgrove.

MR. COSGROVE: No questiomns, thank you.

H.C. BAGGET: Mr. Moskowitz.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

---000---
CROSS-EXAMINATION OE REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BY THE CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO
BY MR. MOSKOWITZ

Mk. MOSKOWITZ: I would like, Mr. Mills, turan to your
new Exhibit 39 with the delétions. First of all, I see your
upward sloping line.

Do you know what the actual numbers are at the
beginning and at end of that line?

MR. MILLS: I can try to read them from the graphic.
Do you mean where they intersect the Y axis?

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Yes. The first one looks to be about
31 and --

MR. MILLS: Iﬁ locks ﬁo be 31. I would say 31,000 and
at the end of this period approximately 44,000.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: One of the interesting things I'm h
noticing about this chart is that at any point along the

line there are six bars that extend above the line and there
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are eight bars that extend below the line, which means that,
notwithstanding this upwaid trend which is, T gather; kind
of an average, ign‘t it? .

MR. MILLS: It is a computer-generated best f£fit curve
line.

MR. MOSKCOWITZ: At any point 6f the line it would --
maybe you have to explain‘a best fit curve line fgr a
nomnmathematician.

What is that?

MR. MILLS: Like I said, I am not a lawyer, and I am
not a mathematician, eithexr, but --

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Maybe we ought to strike your exhibit.

MR. MILLS: Thank you very much for that.

My understanding of this is best curve fit would be one
which would minimize thé deviation between the line that Qou
see on this graph at any particular point on either gide of
it. Sum of the squares, to be specifiec, I think. So the
object would be to minimize the sum of Ehe squares and the
differences between those periods.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: That is, to use lay speak as-Best we
can understand it, both of us are not a mathematician, it is
kind of an average, isn't it? In other words, it igs an
attempt to manipulate some data} to normalize it in some
way?

MR. MCNEVIN: Objection. There is no attempt to
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maniéulate data here.

MR. MOSRKOWITZ: I wasn't speaking pejoratively. To
handle it --

H.O. BAGGET: Sustain the objection.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: To handle the data, if you prefer, to
normalize it in some way? In other words, to basically
combine data in a way that says something about it in the
aggregate, as we”can understand that as well, what I mean by
aggregate?

MR. MILLS: I don't think I agree with that. Simply,
this is a process to determine whether or not there is a
trend in a set of data.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Okay. That is probably the best we can
do with nonmathematicians. Let me ask you this: At any
pqint in which the bars intersect your slope line, there are
more bars under the line than'over the line, isn't that
correct?

MR. MILLS: That is true in this case, but I‘'ve already -
deleted five that were above the line.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: I didmn't ask you how many you deleted.
I'm just saying is that, notwithstanding you have a slope
line, eight times the bar féils to achieve the predicted
slope line; isn't that correct? Isn't that what you tried
to say? |

MR. MILLS: There are eight periods which fall below
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the slope line.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: And only six in which they exceed it?

MR. MILLS: That's correct.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: What I am asking you is if more times
than not you can't make your slope line, wﬁy not? ‘Do you
know? In other words, this slope line is predicting a
certain result, but more times than not you can't achieve
it. So, why not?

MR. MILLS: I don't think the idea here is tq.develop a
line here that has equal number of periods above it and
below it. That is not the mathematical process that ﬁe go
through when we develop a trend amalysis.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: My question is much simpler than that.
These numbers are different. In other words, for any given
Year -- let's take two specific years. Letfs take a look at
1983 and 1984 and right next to it, 1984 and 1985. If we
look there, we see that 1983-1984 seems to have about more
than 5,000, around 5,000; and 184-85 isg below 3,000. So we
have right there on your chart rather different reéults in
adjacent years, notwithstanding this unmistakable, given the
change in scale, not really important trend.

Why would these two numbers be different, is what I am
asking you. How come we can't get the same result in '84
and '85 as we just got to '83-84, given the ummistakable

trend?
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MR. MILLS: I think I can answer that question fér you.
It is not a mathematical issue. The runoff from any
watershed is dependent upon the intensity of the rainfall.
In other words, in some watersheds it may take six or eight
inches per year to have any runoff to occur. And after that
incipient or that threshold is reached, you generally get
some kind of a parabolic curve, which indicates that you
tend to get more runoff per inch of rainfall as you move
into the higher vears.

. MR. MOSKOWITZ: Exactly. So, what . influence is how
ﬂuch the soil will absorb before it starts running off is a
function of what is already in the soil, right?

MR. MILLS: A function -- partly a function of that.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Water years don't start fresh every
year, do they, with the soil being absolutely dry all the
way to bedrock, right? It depends on also what happened the
previous year?

| MR. MILLS: Not necessarily. Water years that we use
here begin on October 1lst of each year. And in Southern

California we have very little rainfall in the summertime, -

80 we tend to start off each water year with the same

antecedant conditions.
MR. MOSKOWITZ: That wasn't what I was asking. Let's
say that we had a period of ten really wet years. It was

one of these rare things in Southern California, floods us’
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out ten years in a row. . Comes year 11, wouldn't you think
that the runoff would start sooner per inch of rainfall thamn
if we hadn't had these ten really wet years?

MR. MCNEVIN: Objection. Incomplete hypothetical.

MR. MOSKOWITZ: I don't know how to make it any more
complete, but I will try again if you didmn't underétand. If
you do understand, I would like an answer.

MR. MILLS: Are you saying that we had tem --

MR. MOSKOWITZ: Let's say the groundwater is -- let:'s
stay -- let's try Bunker Hill Basin. I know something a
little bit about that. Half the time it is threatening to
be a lake. Let's say the groundwater is two foot below
ground surface as it sometimes is, unfortunately, and we
have then the new year's rainfall.

Wouldn't there tend to be runoff sooner than if the
groundwater was, say, 50 feet below ground surface? |

MR. MILLS: I am not that familiar with the Bunker Hill

Basin, whether two feet of unsaturated system would be

filled very rapidly or not. I couldn't answer that

question.

MR, MOSkOWITZ: Forget the Bunker Hill Basin. It's not
important to the question. The question is: TIf soil is
saturated already from'what it's already experienced in the
last geason, and it didn't go anywhere and it is still

there, would you tend to get runoff soomer than if you were
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just exiting from a big drought?

MR. MILLS: As I indicated, that is not a likely
situation in Southern California because we have dry summer's
here.

MR, EOSKOWITZ: That is why peoplé ask hypotheticals;
so you can just grasp the concept if ybu understand the

answer to that concept. In other words -- let me try'thiso

MR. MCNEVIN: Objection. I think we're getting into
argument here. 2And whatever point counsel-wants to make he
can make in his closing argument withdut pursuing this line
aﬁy further. |

MR, MOSKOWITZ: I think that this is a very important
point. If we are talking about an upward trend and the
point that I was making, and this is supposed to be
rebuttal, is.thgt when you get runoff per inch of rain
depends on ﬁhaﬁ you've already experiénced. That is why
phey deleted these dry years;'

So what I was saying,.and what I think it actually
proves;.is that what kind of runoff you get in one year
depends on how wet the soil was from the previous year. In
a wét period you are going to get runoff pretty quick. Wﬁat
I think this witnesé will eventually say, if he wants to, is
that that factor c§mp1eteiy swamps the paving factor that we

are being offered here, that urbanization is the impoxtant
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thing. The really important thing is gré you in a wet year
or diy year.

H.O. BAGGET: I would sustain the objectionf I think
you are_gefting into testimony, your argument that you are
going to be making in your.closing briefs.

Do you have anything else thatfs --

MR. MOSKOWITZ: No. If this line of inquiry is cut
off, then T will, of course, make it in my argument.

Thank you.

H.Q0. BAGGET: EBEast Vélley.

Do we have Inland Eméire?

MRf CIHIGOYENETCHE: Brief.

---000~~-~
| CROSQ-EXAMINATIQE OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BY INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
| BY MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE

MR, CIHIGOYENETCHE: Mr. Mills, in your review of
Exhibits 16, 38 and 39 joﬁ point to an increasing trend of
storm flow per inch of rainfall, correct?

MR. MILLS: That's.correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: In my logic of thinking is that
you're tying this increasing trend as a changed dircumsténce
to warrant the granting of.the application of why we are

here today; is that correct?
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MR. MILLS: 'That's correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Isn't it true, Mr. Mills, that

this increasing trend was indeed anticipated as early as

1969 when the stipulated judgment was entered into between
the parties?

MR. MCNEVIN: Objection. Whether or not it was
aaticipated doesn't mean it occurred and what the testimony
has been is what has factuélly occurred over the part 30
yaars, not what was anticipated._

MR. CIHEIGOYENETCEHE: My question is just that. The
trends that you are displaying to the Board right now in
Exhibit 38 and 39 are precisely those trends that were
addressed by implementing“the formula for calculation of
credits in the 1969 judgﬁent, correct?

MR. MILLS: I don't agree with that.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Yoﬁ believe that these increasing
trends that you've pointed out are something completely new
aﬁd unique that were not taken into contemplation in the
original judgment?

MR. MCNEVIN: Objection. Mischaracterizes the
testimony.

H.O0. BAGGET: Rephrase the question.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Is it your testimony, Mr. Mills,
that the increasing trends that you displayed here with

Exhibits 38 and 39 are increasing flows that were not
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anticipated in the original judgment?

MR. MILLS: I have no knowledge that they were. I
might add, these are storm flows that are not subject to the
42,000 figure that was in the Jjudgment.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: The 12,000 acre-feet that you
testified to as being 8 percent of the historical runoff,
that 12,000 acre-feet is set forth in the testimony of Drury
is only that amount used to blernd; ig that correct?

MR. MCNEVIN: Excuse me, you mischaracterized Mr,
Mills' testimony: He didn't say it as historic runoff. He
said storm flow over the past 30 years.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE; With that in mind?

MR. MILLS: Yes.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Would you answer the que$tion?

MR. MILLS: Would yoﬁ'repeat the question?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: The question is that that 12,000
acre-foot reference is only to that amount utilized to
blend; is that correct? Is that your understanding?

MR. MILLS: That is my understanding. That is what
they would they -- and I think he said he could blend with
either state water or sto:m water.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Nothing further.

E.O. BAGGET: Thank you.

Big Bear.

MR. EVENSON: No questions.
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HE.O. BAGGET: Chino Basin Local Sponsors.
MR. DONLAN: No.
H.O. BAGGET: And Cify of Ontario.
MR. GARNER: I have to ask one or two, I am afraid.
H.O. BAGGET: That is ﬁhy we are here.
---000-~-
CROSS-EXAMINATION OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY QF
ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BY CITY OF ONTARIO
BY MR. GARﬁER
MR. GARNER: Mr. Mills, as you can imagine, I don't
think your clarification gave thé uppér area parties much
comfort, so I need to ask one or two questions here.
You;ré sténding behind the terms of the MOU; is that
cafrect? | |
MR. MILLS: I've said that.

- MR. GARNER§ In your ﬁﬁderstanding in filing this
applicatién is OCWD trying to:obtain a right against the
upper area parties different_than the rights outlined in the
1969 judgment? |

MR. MCNEVIN: Objection, calls for a iegal conclusion.

MR. GARNER: I asked fdr his opinion, and ﬁhére is
testimony. In fact, in his testimony, Page 4, the first
paragraph, he has ﬁestimcﬁy regarding exigting upstream

rigl;tsT In fact, there are numerocus legal references in his

CAPITOL REPORTERS (916) 923-5447 370




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

direct testimony. I think he is well qualified to answer in
his opinion, if that is the case.

MR. MCNEVIN: I doa't think there are any legal
references. There are fadtual-references from stipulated
judément.

MR. GARNER: We can go through it, but I believe there
are legal references.

H.O. BAGGET: I would overrule the objection;

What is yoﬁr understanding?

MR. MCNEVIN: Can we have the question read back?

MR. GARNER} In filing its appliéation, in your
understanding -- in your understanding, Mr. Millé, in £iling
its.application is OCWD trying to ébtain a right different'
than tﬁe rights givén to it in the 196§ Judgment against the
upstream or upper area parties?

MR. MILLS: We are got attempting to acquire a right.
We are simply trying t§ staﬁd behind the.MOU and.what is in
thé stipulated judgment.

MR. GARNER: So yoﬁ are not trying -- in your
understanding you are not trying to acqui:e anj additional
riéht against upper area parties?

MR. MCNEVIN: Same objection. To the extent that this
witness:? understanding of what rights may be inherent in the
stipulated judgment versﬁs what rights are inherenﬁ in its

application has any relevance, he can provide that limited
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testimony.
| MR. GARNER: In your undérstanding, Mr. Mills, is OCWD
trYing to use the petition/application procéss to prevent
e#port of water from the Santa Ana River watershed?
MR. MCNEVIN: Objection. Irrelevant.
MR. GARNER: That is my final queétion. I think it is
relevant. |
H.O. BAGGET: I would sustain the objection,.
MR. GARNER: A1l right. No further quéstions°
-~=-000---
CROSS-EXAMINATION OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BY STAFF
MR. FRiNK: I did have a clarification.
Mr. Mills, I believe thére was a reference made, and
maybe it mistakenly, but in one of the questions you were

asked someone referred to the years that were deleted from

Exhibit 39 as being the dry years. In fact, are the vears

that ﬁere deleted the relatiﬁely wetter years?

MR. MILLS: That is absolutely.true. That was a
ﬁisStatement by counsel,

MR. FRINK: That you. That is all.

MR. MCNEVIN: If there are no further queséions, I move
the admissions of the Exhibits 38 and 39.

H.O. BAGGET: If there are no objectioms, they are
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admitted in evidence for the record.

MR. MCNEVIN: Thank you.

H.O. BAGGET: Two more. Let’s go for it,

MR. COSGROVE: My preference would be to break for
lunch, | |

H.O. BAGGET: Let's take é show of hands.

MR. COSGROVE:. We'll go.

H.O. BAGGET: Let's do it. Maybe we can.take -- I
would like three minutes. I have to make one quic% phone
call, |

Let's take till 12:00, five minutes, seven minutes.

(Break takeﬁ.)

H.Q. BAGGET: Let's Qet going ﬁere.

Mr. Cosgrove, you.can proceed.

MR. COSGROVE: Thank you. We are going to call om
rebﬁttal Mr. Headrick. |

- 000~ -
REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY WATER CONSERVATiON DISTRICT
BY MR. COSGROVE

MR. COSGROVE: Mr. Headrick, you reviewed the analysis
done by Mr. Beeby, correct?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes;

MR. COSGROVE: And you're familiar with the use he

makes of the time between 1971-72 and 199@-91 as the base
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period?

MR. HEADRICK: Yesg, i am.

MR. COSGROVE: And how he uses that period to reach a
cumulative conclusion regarding water available in the Santa
Aﬁa River near Ment;ne?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes.

MR. COSGROVE: Do you believe that the base period he's
identified provides an accurate basis for condluding wha;
unapéropriated water might be presently availéble at ﬁhat
logation?

MR. HEADRICK: No, I do not.

MR, CQSGROVE: Do you agree with his conclusion that
the base period was a conservative indicator of available
river flows?

MR. HEADRICK: No, I ao not.

MR. COSGROVE:I Now, in our testimony this morning he.
had anticipated a little bit of what we've dqne. Have you
done an analysis similar to that which was pPresented by Hio
Beeby this'morning with regpect to the characterization of
that base period as a conservative or dry peridd with
respect to the two gauges from which the amounts of water in
there were calculated as cumulatively available was done?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes.

MR. COSGROVE: What don't you tell us about that

analysis.
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MR. HEADRICK: I am sure everybody's tired of these

‘squiggly lines.

MEMBER FORSTER: They are wonderful.

MR. HEADRICK: All this ig is a combination of the twoc
charts that was presented before with some additional notes
made on them. The top or the red line was the original
submittal by the petitionér, which is for the river and the

flume. The blue line is the river only.

MR. COSGROVE: We will call this Conservation District
21. |

MR. HEADRICK: As has been previously explainéd how you
use these charts to déterﬁine wet, relatively wet or dry
periods, what this chart shows in one pla¢e ig the downward
trend of the adcumulated departure from mean for the entire
gauge system of the river only and the flume, and just the
opposite conclusion can Be_made by looking at the.:iver
oﬁly. |

MR. COSGROVE: What does the amalysis tell you about
Mr. Beeby's ﬁse of basé pe?iod as an indicaﬁor of present or
prospectively available_fiows?

ﬁR. HEADRICK: It obviously, using the methodology
presented in the original testimony, it would overstate the
amount of waﬁer available. Some estimates on how much that
overstatement might be are shown down in the lowerfleft~hand

COorIiier.
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What that slows is how much additional water during
that 20-year period above the average or the change in the
acéumulated departure in mean from the beginning of the
period to the end of the period was. You can see before in
the original testimony we use ail gauges. It shows a dry
périod by 46,000.§cre-feet; But if you use just the river
only, actually shows a wet period of 58,000 acre-feet.
Combined difference ;here is over 100,000 acre-feet.

MR. COSGROVE: Mr. Beeby in his testimonf that he
presented today aﬁpears to take the 8 percent by which the
baée ﬁeriod exceeds average flows atrthose two gauges and
then makes an adjustment to the cumulative amount of water
available.

Do you believe that that is a valid calculation?

MR. HEADRICK: Iﬁ is mnot.

MR. COSGROVE: Why not?

MR. HEADRICK: Using the same criticism about using
avérages qu this flow is apparent in the use of the 8
percent. If you remember during the rebuttal testimony,
they took 8 percent off the top of the totai available water
thét was there, which T believe dropped it 21,000 acre-feet
over.the 20 period by just using this average. But because
we have variable hydrology we really can't do that.

What we see is when we look at the accumulated parts

per mean curves, that it really changed, closer to 60,000
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acre-feet,

MR. COSGROVE:

Are you also familiar with the

presumption that Mr. Beeby made with respect to where Bear

Valley takes its water?

MR. HEADRICK:

MR. COSGROVE:

Yes.

And the presumption that Bear Valley is

a senior right holder would take its water downstream --

would not take its
MR. HEADRICK:
MR. COSGROVE:
ofE, is.there data
presumption?
MR. HEADRICK:
gauge, 11051502.
MR. COSGROVE:
MR. HEADRICK:

MR. COSGROVE:

water downstream of the dam?
Yes.
Was this presumption éccuraté ~=- first

avaiiable to test the validity of this
Yes, there is. It's the auxiliary
Have you loocked at that data?

Yes, i have.

Have you assessed whether Mr. Beeby's

presumption with respect to the fact that Bear Valley uses

infrequent or not at all during the base period, have you

used that data to assess the validity of that presumption?

MR. HEADRICK:

MR. COSGROVE:
he defined?

MR. HEADRICK:

MR. COSGROVE:

Yes.

Was it valid during the base period that

Yes, it was.

Is it valid data?
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MR. HEADRICK: I do not believe so.

MR. COSGROVE: Have you done any kind of compilation of
data from Bear Valley's diversion from this pickup area?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes.

MR. COSGROVE: I would like to mark and offer, mark in
any event, and ask that we put on Conservation District's
Number 22, a chart entitled, "Annuéi Diversion BVMWCHM River
Pickup.™

You see that chart, Mr. Headrick?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes.

MR. COSGROVE: Did you prepare that chart?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes, I did.

MR. COSGROVE: Could you tell us what that is?

| MR. HEADRICK:‘ This shows annual flows that have been
taken in by Bear Valley Mutual Company into their diversion
déwnstream of the dam.

MR. COSGROVE: There was some testimony this morning
that Bear Valley had reconstructed its facilities on the
Bear Valley pickup or auxiliary diversion; is that correct?

MR. HEADRICK: That is correct.

MR. COSGROVE: Are you familjar with the reconstruction
facilities?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes, I am.

MR. COSGROVE: Do you Enow what capacity those

facilities have for diversion downstream of the dam?
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MR. HEADRICK: Yes, I am.

MR. COSGROVE: Wh.ai‘; ig itpe

MR. HEADRICK: The pinch point in that diversion system
is the USGS gauge, a section itself; and it is designed for
45 cfs, 45 to 50 ofs.

MR. COSGROVE: The increasing diversions thaﬁ“are showm
here on the chart shown from Bear Valley, do you héve any
reason to believe that Bear Valley will continue'its more
recent use of this diversion downstream of the Seven Oaks
Dam in taking its water?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes. Since I work with their field
personnel on a weekly basis, they have toid me théy plan to
continue to use this dive:sion to meet their needs.

MR. COSGROVE: What impact does Bear Valley Mutual
Water Company's use of the river pickup have on available
flows from the river only gauges as projected fr&m Mr,
Beeby}s base period?

MR. HEARDRICK: The analysis done by Mr. Beeby, again,
tends to oveérstate the available watér because this
diversion was not taken into account.

MR. COSGROVE: Do you remember in cross-examination
yesterday Mr. 0O'Brien asked you if you'd done an anaiysis of
the probability of the average flows, the monthly éverage
flows, that you testified to on direct being exceeded?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes.
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MR,

analysis?

MR.

MR.

seasonal

MR.

MR.

COSGROVE:

HEADRICK:

COSGROVE:

You indicated that you had done that

That's correct.

Did you do that with respect to the

availability of flows in this area near Mentone?

HEADRICK:

COSGROVE:

@onthly basis?

MR.

MR.

HEADRICK :

COSGROVE:

Yes.

Did you do that with reference to on a

That's correct.

Can you describe for us what analysis

you undertook in that regard?

MR.

HEADRICK:

Again, took the monthly average flow for

the 87 years of record that we have and summarized them oxr

put them in a column and sorted them from lowest to highest,

and assigned each one of those a value of probability that a

flow would be equal or exceeded.

MR.
ana}ysis
MR.
MR.

CDh 23, a

COSGROVE::

Have you compiled the results of that

in any graphic form?

HEADRICK:

COSGROVE:

Yes.

I would like to offer and show Exhibit

chart entitled "Summary of Probability of Monthly

Average Flows cfg Being-Exceeded.“

Can you tell me what this chart reflects?

MR,

HEADRICK:

Again, this is just a summary of the

analysis I just described wherein I took some reference or
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benchmark flows, ranging £rom 5 to 500 cfs, and chose the
probabilities that those reference or benchmark flows would
be equaled or exceeded. |

For example, at the 500 ¢fs level vou can see the
chance that an.average flow during that time was equaled oxr
exceeded between April and November is zero.

MR. COSGROVE: The percentages that are shown here on
this chart, are these after diversions by the Conservation
District or Bear Valley?

MR. HEADRICK: No. This is before. This is the raw
river.

MR. COSGROVE: What conclusions do you draw from this
analysis regarding the seasonal availability of'flgws and
the exceedance of monthly averages? .

MR. HEADRICK: Agaim, it looks to be typical of what a
Southern California river would look like dominated by a
natural stream system. it shows a very dry period in the
summer and fall time. And a wetter period during the
springL

MR. COSGROVE: Now, there has been some criticism here
on your use of monthly avexages'and, indeed, on the use of
any types of averaggs for analysié of.flows on a variable
si:ream .

Have you dqne any analysis of the seasonable

availability of flows near Mentone that doesn't use
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averages?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes, I have.

MR. COSGROVE: What:analysis did you undertake in_that
regard?

MR. HEADRICK: I actually performed the same type of
aﬁalysis, but instead of dding any averaging I tock the raw
USGS daily data and performed the same type of exceedance
analysis where you take the roughly 2500 days in January
that have occurred the last 87 years, and you sort those
ffqm highest to lowest and assign probabilities to each one
of those.

MR. COSGROVE: And did you compile the results of that
analysis in any kind of graphic form?

MR, ﬁEADRICK: Yes.

MR, COSGROVE: What did_you deo?

MR. HEADRICK: I've actually put together 12 charts,
one for each month, that showed the probability of
exéeeding. We'll put up just a couple representative. A
wet period, let's pick.Mar¢h:or October.

MR. COSGROVE: What I would like to do is collectively
mark the months' charts for the probability of daily flow
being equaled or exceeded as Conservation District'g 24,
cénsisting of 12 charts, January through December.

MR. HEADRICK: What we see, locking at this March, is

what we comsider our wet period where the chance that any
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day in the last 87 Years was above the daily flow, was above
200, is in the 10-percent range. If we overlay oﬁltop of
that the'October, whicb we consider ome of the drier months.

MR. COSGROVE: Let's hold off a minute. I can see that
i've‘caused some couste:nation. I am geoing to méfk these
indivi&ually, 24 through -- I aﬁ sorry.

MS. MROWKA: You have to pick a plaa.

MR. CAVENDER: 24 through 35.

MR. COSGROVE: 24 through 35.

Go ahead, Mr. Headrick.

MR. HEADRICK: Whét ydu see when you overlay this dry
and a wet period is the diiference between the prqﬁability
that flows will exist in a2 wet month and a dry month. We
see that in October the opportunity for -; the probabilitf
that a flow would exceed 200 cfs during October, based on
data from the last 87 years, is zero.

MR. COSGROVE: Have yvou taken ﬁhe data and results from
this analysis and compiléd it in a chart form similar that
you did for that analysis of the monthly average fiows being
exceeded?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes, I have.

MR. COSGﬁDVE: Could you show that.to us, piease.

MR. HEADRICK: Again; using the samé.layou; as before,
but this has no averaging other than averaging used by the

USGS to come up with our agtual discrete pdints of daily
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flow.

| Again, we see a very dry period. 2And if we were to
6ver1ay the graph from the monthly chart to the daily chart,
you would see that the results are quife similar. Again, we
have a roughly eight-monﬁh period where the flows, the
proﬁability of the flows exceeding 500 cfs. Again, that was
the point that I identified yYesterday as the regulatory
point or regulating effectipoint for the dam.

The chance thaﬁ thbse.fibws would ever be reached
during the period April through December is less than 1
percent.

MR. COSGROVE: What do you conclude on the basis of the
analysis that you have done, both with the exceedance |
analysis for monthly flows and the exceedance analysis with
réspect to dding no averages,.but just looking at the raw
data with fespect to the season of availability that you
testified to én direct?

MR. HEADRiCK:. I believe it'supports the conclusions
that we made before. A2and based on Mr. Beeby's assumption
that the dam will regulate flows above 500 cfs, it appears
that the 500 cfs row or the bottom row that is shown on the
two charts is an appropriate basis for determining the new
water or the probability that new water will be created by
regulatory effects of the dam.

I believe that these two charts that we have prepared ’
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are tools that the State Board can use to determige the
answer to ome of the key issues, and that is is there
adequate water available and, if there is, during-what
pericds does it exist.

MR. CbSGROVE: We don't have any further questions at
this time.

MR. FRINK: Just so the record is clear, the last chart
that you referred to is Summary of Probability of Daily
Flows Being Exceéded, Water Years 1912 to 1998, would be |
Exhibit 36.

ﬁs. MROWKA: No, 38 -- no, 36; you are right.

H.O. BAGGET: Mr. QO'Brien.

MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you.

| ---600---
CRoss-EXAMINATIdN OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEYVWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
B& SAN BERNARDINC VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT &
WESTERN MUTUAL WATER DISTRICT
BY MR. O'BRIEN |

MR. O'BRIEN: Mr. Headrick, you have reiterated your
concerns about Mr. Beeby's base period and provided us with
this analysis reflected in Exhibit 21.

As I understand it; four analysis is basged egSentially
on data from different gauges than that used by Mr. Beebf;

is that correct?
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MR. HEADRICK: That is not correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: Mr. Beeby in the analysis that he
performed to come up with his numbers for the base period
used, I believe, the combined gauge, Number 11051 and 501;
is that correct?

MR. HEADRICK: That's correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: Your ana;ysis you used the river only
gauge, which is Number 110515007

MR. HEADRICK: That's correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: So you did use different gauges?

MR. HEADRICK: I used the same gauges.

MR. O'BRIEN: Just different data?

MR. HEADRICK: I just combined two of them instead of

' MR. O'BRIEN: Fair enough.

Now, leaving aside the question of whether the data Mr.
Beeby used was the right éet of data or the set of data you
used was the right set of data, and I understand you
disagree with the data set he used, but what I want to get
to is in performing his analysis of that data, the
mathematical computations that he did, do you have any
problems with the way he computed his numbers?

MR. HEADRICK: Are you speaking just about his
accﬁmulated departure from mean that he presented in his

original testimony?
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MR. O'BRIEN: Correct.

MR. HEADRICK: No. I believe that is represented on
our chart; it is the same. We are using the same data set.

MR. O'BRIEN: Okay.

So, is it fair to say, based on what you just told me,
that if you were to use Mr. Beeby's gauge data,"as opposed
to the gauge data you used, you would expect to come to the
same conclusions that he“came to with respect to the
question of water available at that location?

MR. HEADRICK: If I were to use his methodology and --

MR. COSGROVE: I am going to object. I think that
mischaracterizes his testimony.

MR. O'BRIEN: Do you understand my question, Mr,
Headrick?

MR. HERDRICK: I understand your question. If T were
to do the exact same analysis that he did, would I come to
the same conclugions? The answer is yes.

MR. O'BRIEN: Mathematically.

Thank you.

Now, getting back to your amalysis, you conclﬁded that
the base period that Mr. Beeby utilized is, in your words,
wetter than normal, co;rect?

MR. HEADRICK: Thét's correct,

MR. O'BRIEN: I believe you testified in your rebuttal

testimony that you think that the impact of his use of his
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base period versus a more no;mal base period is in the range
of about 60,000 acre-feet; ig that correct?

ﬂR. HEADRICK: Yes.

MR. O'BRIEN: WMr. Beeby had testified in his direct
testimony that he thought, based on his analysis, that there
was between 261,000 and 278,000 acre-feet of water
potentially available for appropriation based om hig
analysis; do you zecall thaﬁ?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes.

MR. O'BRIEN: You are saying that, in.fact, in order to
be conservative he ought to take 60,000 acre-feet'off those
numbers?

MR. HEADRICK: That would not be copéervative; that
w@uld get it back to normal. To bé congervative yoﬁ could
potentially decrease it by the number that he wag makiné use‘
of before, to determine what was conservative andg what
wasn't conservative, the minus 46, 000. So, if you actually
want to be congervative you wouldn't put 1t back to neutral
dr normal hydrology, you would actually want to make it a
little drler. Sc that change --

MR. O'BRIEN: If you were going to be conservative
based on the curve that you prepared in estimating the
aﬁount of water that is availabile at that location what
number would you Subtraéﬁ from his numbef of 261,000

acre-feet?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (916) 923-5447 388




10

11

12

13

14
15
16
17
138
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

MR. COSGROVE: 1I'll object. That is vague as to time.
Available when?

MR. HEADRICK: I haven't had any chance to analyze
that. I would have to actually sit down and go through the
nuﬁbers to determine what I would consider to be
conservative. . |

MR. O'ERIEﬁ: I am trying to figure out how that 60,000
acre-foot number fits int§ this. You have given us thgt
number. I would like you to explain what that number
represents. |

MR. HEADRICK: That number represents the difference
between the accumulated departure from mean at the:beginniﬁg
of the chosen base period.and accumulated departure from the
mean at the end of the base period. So it is ingreased by
that much mean. On average'that much more ﬁatex went by
through that period..

MR. O'BRIEN: That represents the increment bf which
you believe Mr. Beeby's analysis may bef shall I say, less
conservative. Is that fair? |

MR. HEADRICK: That ié part of it, vyes.

MR. O'BRIEN: Would you disagree, though, based on the
analysis that you have dang that there is surplus water that
basses the river at that point at Mentomne, regardless --
let's not talk about what the number, let's talk about the

gross terms. Is there surplus water?
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MR. COSGROVE: Again, vague as to time.

H.O0. BAGGET: Over what time period?

MR. O'BRIEN: The time periods reflected in your
exhibit. ‘

. MR. HEADRICK: I believe my analysis shows that during
cértain periods of the year, January through April, January
through May, there are significant flows.l

MR. O'BRIEN: Those flows would be available for
di#ersion at Seven 6aks Dam, assuming that the State Board
grants the necessary permits?

MR. COSGROVE: I think that calls for a legal
conclusion. Object to it om that basis.

H.O. BAGGET: Sustained.

MR. O'BRIEN: Those quantities would be physically
capable of diversion in the vicinity of Seven Oaks Dam,
right?

MR. HEADRICK: That is not known yet. Physically
meaning the facilities exist to perform that function?

MR. O'BRIEN: Let's assume the facilities exist. The
question is, is the water there?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes, I believe analysis shows that,

MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you.

On the Bear Valley Mutual diversions, which is your

Exhibit Number 22, these increases in Bear Valley Mutual

diversions that occurred, let's say, beginning in 1995, do
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you know what precipitated that change?

MR. HEADRICK: I believe construction of the dam.

MR. O'BRIEN: And is it fair to say that the increases
in diversions starting iﬁ 1995 occurred cutside the base
period which Mr. Beeby used for his analysis?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes.

MR. O'BRIEN: So this -- these increases in the
diversions cccurring in 1995 would not effect the validity
of Mr. Beeby's analysis?

MR. HEADRICK: That is not correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: Are you aware of any net increase in the
diversions of water by Béér Valley Mutual during the past
ten years?

MR. HEADRICK: I am not.

MR. O'BRIEN: So this is a situation where they're
taking the same amount of water but they are doiﬁé it at a
different location? |

MR. HEADRICK: I don't know if they are taking the same
amcunt of water, |

MR. O'BRIEN: You havé no knowledge of that?

MR. HEADRICK: I do not have that informatién with mea.

MR. O'BRIEN: If Bear Valley Mutual were to in the
future divert more water at a point farther downstream, as
you've suggested, wbuld that make diversion capacit& in the

Southern California Edison facilities available for dther
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parties to use at an elevation higher?

MR. COSGROVE: I think that calls for a legal
conclusion, as well.

MR. O'BRIEN: Physically?

MR. HEADRICK: Repeat that gquestion,

MR. O'BRIEN: If Bear Valley Mutual were to do what ¥ou
aré suggesting and move some of its diversions farther
déwnstream, would that free up physical capacity in the
Sduthern California Edison system for use by other parties
at a higher elevation?

MR. HEADRICEK: I doﬁ't believe so. The Edison system
isrrun by Edison. They put as much water into it as they
caﬁ, based on the flows, as I understand it. Would not freé
aﬁything up.

MR. O'BRIEN: So, the fact of Bear Valley Mutual fakiné
mpre water at a different location wouldn't make any
diversion capacity available at the higher point?

MR. HEADRICK: No.

MR. O'BRIEN: Taking a look at your Exhibit 23, I
believe, the summarj of probability of monthly average flows
being exceeded, you testified in your previous testimony, I
believe, that based on your analysis of aﬁerages that there
waé no water available for diversions in a period May
throggh December. Is that a fair summary?

MR. HEADRICK: With the averages I used, ves.
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MR. O'BRIEN: I am glad you added that qualifier;

Is it fair to say that in some years there will be
significant amount of water available during the years of
May through December in soﬁe wet years?

MR. HEADRICK: Over éqd above the historic diversions?

MR. O'BRIEN: Yes.

MR. HEADRICK: I don't believe so. When you say
significant, I don’'t know what that means. Obviously, the
water is not in the river in significant levels.

MR. O'BRIEN: Your previous testimony was that there is
no water May through December, taking into account the
diversion requirements qf.the senior water right claimants
and only taking into account the Conservation District's
licensed water rights. Is that a fair Summary? |

MR. HEADRICK: Yes. On a monthly average basis that is
correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: Yes. Thank you for continuing to remind
ﬁy about that.

The record of diversions by the Comnservation District,
which we loocked at yesterday, shows significant qﬁantities
of water being diverted M%y through Decembér period fox
some years by the Conservation Digtrict, correct?

MR. HEADRICK: That's correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: All of that water is being diverted

under your claim of pre-1914 right?
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MR. COSGROVE: I will object that it calls for a legal
conclusion.

MR. O'BRIEN: It is oﬁtside the season of your
licenses, and it is eitﬁer an illegal diversion or pre-1914
rights.

MR. COSGROVE: The recharacterization doesn't change
the fact that he is asking for a legal conclusion.

H.O0. BAGGET: I will sustain the objection.

MR. O'BRIEN: To your Enowledge, are those diversions
within the season of diversion under your licenses?

MR. HEADRICK: Which ones?

MR. O'BRIEN: The May through December diversions.

MR. HEADRICK: Part of them is. Our licenses go
thrpugh the end of May.

MR. O'BRIEN: Fair enough.

Are the‘diversions that occur between June 1 and the
end of September by the Conservation District within the -
season of diversion_under your licenses?

MR. COSGROVE: I will object on relevance. It seeéms as
though we are setting up a water rights fight.

MR. O'BRIEN: I will explain the relevance, if I may.
He is saying there is no water available in the system over
and above his license rights_and the rights of tﬁe other
c;aimants. Yet his employer; the district, has diverted

vast quantities of water during those same months under the
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Pre-1914 rights when be said there is no water in excess of
the licensed rights. So something is inconsistent here, and
I am entitled to explore that.

H.O. BAGGET: I would overrule the objection.

MR. O'BRIEN: Are the diversions that ocaur by the
Conservation District betwéen the months of -- between Jhne.
1 and the end of September within the season of diversion
under the Conservation District's license rights?

MR. COSGROVE: To the extent that the witmess is
testifying to his understanding. I think that does also
call for a legal conclusion. To the extent that you
understand.

'MR. HEADRICK: CouldIYOu ask the question again?

MR. O'BRIEN: Your licenses set forth season of
diversion. In fact, you just pointed out to me one takes
you through the end of May. So you are familiar with the
licenses? |

MR. HEADRICK: Yes.

MR. O'BRIEN: Is it your understanding that water
that's been diverted by‘thé Conservation DPistrict during the
period of Jume 1 through the end of Séptember in various
years is water that's diverted outsgide the authorized season
of diversion under the two licenses?

MR. HEADRICK: That's correct.

MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you.
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If I could just have one minute.
I have nothing further.
HE.Q. BAGGET: Thank you.
Mr. McNevin.
MR. MCNEVIN: No questions.
H.O..BAGGET: City of San Bermardino.
MR. MOSKOWITZ: No questiomns.
H.O. BAGGET: East Valley.
MR. KENNEDY: No questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Inland Empire.
MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: No questions.
H.O0. BAGGET: Big Bear.
MR. EVENSON: No questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Local Sponsors.
MR. bONLAN: No questiorns.
H.O. BAGGET: City o£ Cntario.
MR. GARNER: No questions.
H.O. BAGGET: Redirect.
MR. COSGRQOVE: Just one question.
---000---
REDIRECT-EXAHINATION OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
SAN BERNARDINO VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT
BY MR. COSGROVE
MR, COSGROVE: You were asked if you would perform the

exact same analysis as Mr. Beeby in connection with the
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accumulated departure from mean flow whether you would come
up with the same conclusions and you answerad ves:; is that
correct, with respect to the three gauges?

MR. HEADRICK: Yes,

MR. COSGROVE: Wouid yvou perform that exact same
analysis to determine the availabilify of flow at Mentone
from the gauges?

MR. HEADRICK: Reask the question again.

MR. COSGROVE: Would.you‘have selected the same
methodology? The questio# that you were asked if adopting
the same methodology as they did, if you ran the numbers
would it be the same? I guess my question is, would you
adopt that same methodoloéy?

MR. HEADRICK: No.

MR. COSGROVE: I have no further questions.

MR. O'BRIEN: Nothing further.

H.O. BAGGET: Exhibits.

MR. COSGROVE: We will offer Comservation District
Exhibits Number 21 through 36, I believe. |

MS. MROWKA: Yes.

H.O0. BAGGET: Objections.

If not, they are entered into the record.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Mr. Bagget, I have Traci Stewart
in rebuttal, and also a new witness in rebuttal, Mr. Bud

Carroll.
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REBUTTAY, TESTIMONY QF INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
BY MR CIHIGOYENETCHE

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Mr. Carroll, spell your name foxr
the record.

MR. CARROLL: TIt's Carroll. My first name is William,
W-i-1-1-i-a-m.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: I am going to begin briefly with
Ms. Stewart, if that is okay.

Ms. Stewart, you have an overhead. You heard the
testimony of Mr. Mills earlier with regard to the 12,000
acre-feet per year, and how it represents 8 percent of the
overall runoff?

MS. STEWART: fes. And I borrowed this ovefhead from
Dr. Drury. Under our judgment, which is very much like the
other adjudications for the watershed, it is a stipulated
judgment and a physical solution in response to Ms.
FbrSter's inquiries about it.

Our parties té this judgment consider this, in essence,
like a kind of implementation of their rights under the
Santa Ana judgment. That is why it was dome subsequent to
the Santa Ana River Judgment, the 1969 judgment, because
this in essence represents what they then agree to on how we
are going to use the water resources in our basin.

In developing this Optimum Basin Management Program

very recently each of the basins that you see up there, they
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are indicated in gréen, those aie existing basins that we
have available to us in furtherance of optimally managing
our basinsgs. We had our engineer, Mark Wildermuth, anaiyze
our ability to use those basins. 2nd with some
modification, but minor modification, primarily reoperation
of those basins, what wé have fouﬁd is that with these
existing basins we have the ability to not only --1

MR. MCNEVIN: Objedtion. I object on heafsay grounds.
Apparently this witness is now recharacteriﬁing the
testimony of a person who did this work, who is not
available for cross, Mr. Wildermuth.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: She can testify as to technical
data that she has received in the course of managing and
performing her duties as Watermaster. I think it goes to
the weight of testimony as opposed to the admissibility of
the testimony.

MR. MCNEVIN: If I can respond. It doesn't gé to
weight at all. The rules for this Board on hearsay are that
hearsay is only admissible if the underlying evidence would
be admissible. Here Mr._Wildermuth is not available. This
is hearsay on hearsay. Not only is he not available, but
now we have this witness' recharacterization without any
legitimate opportunity by us. No exhibits were submitted on
this. No testimony. We have no opportunity to cross Mr.

Wildermuth on this.
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H.O. BAGGET: Response.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: The response is that this is
information that she is imparting to us based on her
knowledge in the course of management of the Watermaster, I
could rephrase the questiqn as to whether or not she's
familiar with recharge capabilities of the basin.

H;O. BAGGET: If you could rephrase the question.

HR..CIHIGOYENETCHE: Are you familiar with the recharge
capabilities of the basin?i

MS. STEWART: I am fami;iar with the recharge
caﬁabilities of the basin. What we find is that with these
existing facilities we have the ability to recharge not only
the storm water runaff that we are ant;cmpatlng recharging
under our Optamum Basin Management Program, but also the
raqycled water and the 1mported flows.

The qniy.thing that we feel that we would nead
additional recharge capability is to implement a large scale
conjunctive use program.

And that is the extent of what I wanted to provide to
the Board.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Going to Mr. Carroll at this point
in time.

Mr. Carroll, what is your present occupation, sir?

MR. CARROLL: I am a retired civil engineer. However,

I have spent my career, most of my career, with the Ffirm of
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James Montgomery; now known as Montgomery Watson. I was the
President and Chief Executive Office;.for the last 20 years’
of my career with the comﬁany. B

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: You have also served on the Board
of Wétermaster for the.Saﬁté Ana River; is that cqtreét?

MR. CARROLL: Yes. I served on.the Watermastgr Board
from its inception until the last year when I resigned.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Its inception would be? -

MR. CARROLL: Its inception was in 1970.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Are you familiar with the
stipulated judgment in the Orange County casé, which we have
been referring to during these proéeedings?

MR. CARROLL: Yes, I am. I was one of the engineers
that worked om that whoie physical solution from the years
1965 through 1969.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: You have been present here during
the course of this hearing, both yeéterday and today;'is!“
that correét? | H

MR. CARROLL: Yes, I have.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Did you hear the testimony of Mr.
Mills on behalf of Orangé:County Water District?

MR. CARROLL: Yes, I have. |

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: You have heard them his position
is that the increased flows in the river constitute changed

circumstances warranting a recongideration of the
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declaration of fully appropriation; is that correct?

MR. CARROLL: I am hesitating because I understand Mr.
Mills' position as being there's increased flow in the
river. For a lot of reasons there is increased flow in the
river. But I am not sure that he ig claiming that they have
the right to that increased.flow. I don‘f know whether that
a#swers your quéstion.

MR. CINIGOYENETCHE: Kind of.

MR. CARROLh: My understanding here, if I can just
carry on, is that, well, all the data shows that there's
béen increased flow. Both increased base fiow.and increased
storm flow that reaches Prado, that.the Oragge County
iﬁterest understands, that they only have the.right to the
42,000 acre-foot base flow. And you have to understand that
that right may decrease in the future.

This hasn'p come out in the tesgtimony at all. But what
happened was in the base period that we used in developing
this whole solution, the base flow was 47,000 acre-feet a
year over that period. However, during the negotiation of
the settlement, because the upstream interests actually were
willing‘to guarantee 42,000 acre-feet every year of base
flow, there was a 5,000 acre-foot reduction just because of:
the fact that this was a guarantee that lasted vear after
year after year.

There was also a further situation that occurs that
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atter the year 1986 that that flow could be reduced to
34,000 acre-feet if there was a surplus greater than 10,000
acre-feet. Now, this is éctual water they wanted -- you -
have to deliver actually 34,000 acre-feet of actual water.
Io make up the 42,000 acre-feet you could start using some
of that surplus if the surplus exceeded 10,000 écre-feet.
Of course, the surplus is about 1.8 million acrefféet.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: Back during the couxse of
negotiations there was some concern by the upper region of
their ability to meet the guarantee of 42,000 acre-feet; is
that correct?_ |

MR._CARROLL: That's correct.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: And during the course of those
discuséiéns in which you were a participant, Mr. Carroll,
future urbanization and resulting increase inflows was, in
fact,lconsidered; isn't that corregt?

MR. CARROLL: Yes,‘it.was.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: What was the understanding as to
the upper region, and the lower region for that matter, who
would have the right to those increased f£lows?

MR. CARROLL: The undérstandiné was that each of the
upstream districts had the right to manage their own whole
water resource system independent.of the Orange Ccﬁnty
situation, as long as the base flow requirement was met at

Prado. So there was discussion what each one of these upper
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districts could do relative to conserving storm flow,
reclaiming the wastewater and that whole situation.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: That was all part of the
discussions and negotiatidns leading up to the stipulated
jﬁdgmenk?

MR. CARROLL: Yes.

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: I have nothing further of thisg
witness at this time orx either of the witnesses.

H.O. BAGGET: Mr. O!'Brien.

MR. O'BRIEN: No questionms.

H.O0. BAGGET: Mr. McNevin.

MR. MCNEVIN: May I have one moment, please?

E.O. BAGGET; Yes.

Mr, Cgsgrove.

MR. COSGROVE: No questions.

H.O. BAGGET: Save my list. Ig there any other party
having any ‘questions?

| Mr. McNevin, are you ieady?
MR. MCNEVIN: Yes. Thank you, your Honozx.
-=-=-000---
CROSS-EXAMINATION OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY QOF
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
BY ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BY MR. MCNEVIN

"MR. MCNEVIN: Mr. Carroll, thank you for that history.
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MR. CARROLL: You're welcome.

MR. MCNEVIN: Thank you also for confirming the
increased basin storm flows at Prado.

Ms. Stewart, I have one question'for'you. fou said
that you have the ability to recharge the storm Flow?

MS. sfz-:whnr: Yes.

MR. MCNEVIN: Now, we don't have the underlying data
for us, and I am not going to get into that with you, but
isn't it your understanding that the ability to recha:ge
into a basin is significantly different than that ability to
capture and divert so that you can recharge?

MS. STEWART: That's correct.

MR. MCNEVIN: And the ability to capture the storm flow
and hold it so that you can recharge is the subject of this
rule of seven that we were discuSsing this morning; is that
not correct?

MS. STEWART: I would say that the ability to capture'
is based on what I heard Mr. Evenson say that that is
correct. But I was addressing our ability to rechérge°

MR. MCNEVIN: That is what I thought.

Thank you very much.

H.O. BAGGET: Any redirect?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE& No.

MEMBER FORSTER: I have a question for Mr. Carroll.

-==-000--~-
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CROSS-EXAMINATION OF REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
BY BOARD
' MEMBER FORSTER: I think I understand that what you
were talking about, there was an understanding in the '69
settlement about reclamation and storm flows and that was
all considered at that time?

MR. CARROLL: Yes, it was. What we had to consider,
and you have to realize back in that period of time there
was -- the flows were quite low. The base flows were quite
loﬁ. And the end result was we had to worry about how we
were going to meet this guarantee. And by both -- and that
guarantee was by both Western and then Chino Basin Municipal
Water District. The Western engineer was Mr. Burt Web and
I; together with two attornmeys, Art Littlebert [phonetic]
and Donald Stark got together. And what we did was we
concluded that we would have to meet the base Flows by
disqharging wastewater to the stream for a periocd of time.
2nd, of course, there were other wastewater flows going into
the river.

But the concept was always that the wastewater streams
could be made available to satisfy the base flow. But in
the big period as the area developed other consideration
wouid be given to what would be done with the waste flows,

such as reclaiming them, recharging them, dumping them in
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the river, a lot of alternmatives.

MEMBER FORSTER: Isn't it conceivable -- I mean, did
you -- T moved here in_the '60s. When you were WOéking on
this, you said from '65 to '69, do you think that anybody

had the concept of how much growth there would be in

impervious ground? You know, who knew the Inland Empire

would become such an affordable place to live and would be
have such rampant growth, and maybe -- I think it is said
that it is one of the fastest growing communities in the
United States.

So, isn't it feasible that no one had any undgrstanding
of how much runoff there would really be? |

MR. CARROLL: Actuaily, as engineers amalyzing that

situation, we did anticipate there would be imncreasing

- runoff with time. The big question is what rate, I mean, of

time, whether it would be five years, ten years, iS yYears or
a hundred years for thisg develqpment to take place. But we
did alwaYs realize that we were going to have increased’
wastewater flows and increased storm runoff due to the
developmeﬁt of the area.

Because all of us engineers fool around with locking at
long range plans and development. And whether you work for
the Chino Basin Water District or Western, they all have
long range plans of what is going to happen in the future.

We always make population estimates, and we have done all
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that for these area over long pericds of time.

MEMBER FORSTER: Was it -- my final ﬁhing: But the
general plans of those days and the populations compared
with these days aren't quite eqﬁivalent, do you think?

MR. CARROLL: I would say that they are the same. The
same procedure's used. You might say a certain area has
increased more rapidly than you thought. If I can give you
an example. I made a lot of long range forecasts for
cities. The City of San Diego anticipated a large increase
in development, the City of éan Diego. The City of Las
Vegas, the same way. Manila, Philippines, around the world.

And it is true that you may make a mistake on the rate
of'growth, how fast it is going to grow, but we have been
pfoven correct that growth will occur. But possibly, maybe
we miss it by a few years here and there.

MEMBER FORSTER: That is all.

H.0. BAGGET: Any --

HR. MCNEVIN: I have some rewhatever it would be. .Just.
three.

MR. GARNER: Do the Board procedures provide for
redi:ect --

MEMBER FORSTER: He is redirection on mé.

H.O. BAGGET: Is that7£he end of the procedure when a -
Board Member --

MR. MCNEVIN: In light of Ms. Forster's question, I
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wanted to follow up on thg issues that were raised at that
point. I will be extremely brief.

MR. GARNER: I will defer to Mr. Frink. Just in the
normal course, the purposé of cross-examination is to --

H.O. BAGGET: I gndefstand, but I guess I was remiss in
not allowing --

MEMBER FORSTER: Board Members - -

E.O. BAGGET: Prior to -~

MR. FRINK: Has Mr. McNevin participated in recross?

MR. MCNEVIN: But not on the topics that were just
raised by the Board.

MR. FRINK: It would be prior to Bear Valley, Ms.
Forster, so --

MEMBER FORSTER: I dom't think -- excuse me. I dom't
think there is any prohibition on anything a Board Member
wants to ask. I tried to keep it to what he said. He
talked about runoff that was anticipated and reclamation
that was anticipate@. Méybe I just built on that. But I
don't think it was -- I think that it was part of what he
was stating, in any perspective.

MR. GARNER: My only point was that direct had
occurred and crogs had occurred. Then at that time Board
asks whatever questions that they choose. That usually
closes the proceedings.

MR. MCNEVIN: I guarantee that we are taking more time
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to talk about it than my short questions. I think you have
the authority to let me ask the questions.

H.Q0. BAGGET: I will éllow the questions. I
understand. Just so it doesn't start a round of questions.

| MR. MCNEVIN: Mr. Carroll, in 1969 when you were
negotiating a stipulated judgment, did you have available to
you any fact regarding the population of Iniand Empire
today?

.- MR. CARROLL: Actually, we had made population
forecasts for the Inland Empire over a reriod of time,
whether it was -- and I can't say that it is factual now. T
cén’t even remember what they were.

MR. MCNEVIN: Did you have information as to the volume
of wastewater that comes down that river today? Again this
is in 1969.

- MR, CIHIGOYENETCHE: Objection. These are
argumentative. They suggest the answer.

MR. MCNEVIN: I don't mean to argue. The witness said
that he made some projections and I am asking what he
p?djected.

- H.O0. BAGGET: Overruled.

MR. CARROLL: Our projections were that the wastewater
flow was going to increase.

MR. MCNEVIN: Did your projections match the numbers

that we actually have today?
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MR. CARROLL: I can't remember.

MR. MCNEVIN: Did you make a projection of impervious
ground cover that matches what we have today?

MR. CARROLL: No.

MR. MCNEVIN: Thank you very much.

Thank you.

H.O. BAGGET: Any other?

If not, anything to get into evidence?

MR. CIHIGOYENETCHE: There were no additional .
exhibits. Exhibit used bj Ms. Stewart was already in the
record.

H.O. BAGGET: With that, we need to come up to closing

statements or briefs for the parties. I was going to

~suggest towards the end of January.

MR. O'BRIEN: What we've done in past'hearings is 30
days after the transcript is ready, and I understand that
the transcript will prcbably be ready sometime towérd the
end of December, early January. Comes out about the same.
That way we all have the benefit of the-transcript, which I
think is actually a help for the Board to go throﬁgh.

H.O. BAGGET: I realize some people have a pretty heavy
December workload. I would like in fairmess to give people
an opportunity to at leaét catch New Year's. I hope I did.

So 30 days after the transcript? Does that work for

staff?
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(Discussion held off record.)

H.O. BAGGET: February 1lth.

MR. O'BRIEN: That will be simulténeous brief, all
briefs due on the same day?

H.O. BAGGET: February 1lth. That works for
everybody.

With that, this brings us to the close of the
evidentiary hearing. The evidentiary record in this matter
is now closed.

The Board will take this matter under submission. All
persons who participated in.this hearing will be sent notice
of the Board's proposed order on this matter or any further
Board meeting at which time this matter will be consideredf
After the Board adopts an order on this matter, any person
wﬁo believes this order is in error will have 30 days within
which time to submit a written petition for reconsideration
by the Board.

I thank you for your interest, participation and
cooperation, particularly, persomally, being my first
hearing the ability to keep what I saw as a fairly
poténtially lengthy process; I think I apprediate you
keeping your comments to the peint and on the issues which
were relative to the proceedings.

Thank you. Have a good holiday.

(Hearing adjourned at 1:10 p.m.)
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